Y Pwyllgor Amgylchedd a Chynaliadwyedd - y
Pedwerydd Cynulliad

Lleoliad: Cynulliad

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Dyddiad: National

Dydd lau, 17 Mai 2012 Assembly for
Wales

oy T

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Alun Davidson
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565
Cysylltu@Cynulliad.Cymru

Agenda

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon

2 Ymchwiliad i Glastir - Tystiolaeth lafar (09.00 - 14.30) (Tudalennau 1 -
57)
09.00 - 10.20

E&S(4)-15-12 papur 1 - Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru
Bernard Llewellyn, Cadeirydd Bwrdd Materion Gwledig Undeb Cenedlaethol yr
Amaethwyr Cymru
Dafydd Jarrett, Ymgynghorydd Polisi Ffermydd

E&S(4)-15-12 papur 2 - Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru
Glyn Roberts, Dirprwy Lywydd
Rhian Nowell-Phillips, Dirprwy Gyfarwyddwr Polisi Amaethyddol

E&S(4)-15-12 papur 3 - Cymdeithas y Tirfeddianwyr
Sue Evans, Cyfarwyddwr Polisi - Cymru
Ant Griffith, Is-gadeirydd

Egwyl 10.20 - 10.30
10.30-11.15

E&S(4)-15-12 papur 4 - Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru
Brian Pawson, Uwch Ymgynghorydd Amaethyddiaeth



leuan Joyce, Aelod o’r Cyngor

11.15-12.15
E&S(4)-15-12 papur 5 - Cyswllt Amgylchedd Cymru
Arfon Williams, RSPB Cymru

12.15 - 13.30 - Egwyl

13.30 - 14.30

E&S(4)-15-12 papur 6 - Cymdeithas y Pridd
Emma Hockridge, Pennaeth Polisi, Cymdeithas y Pridd
Keri Davies, Grwp Organig Cymru

Egwyl 12.15-13.30

3 Papurau i'w nodi

Ymchwiliad i bolisi a chynllunio ynni yng Nghymru - Llythyr gan Weinidog yr
Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy (Tudalennau 58 - 61)
E&S(4)-15-12 papur 7

Canllaw Statudol Drafft ar Dir Halogedig - LIythyr gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd
a Datblygu Cynaliadwy (Tudalennau 62 - 65)
E&S(4)-15-12 papur 8

Gorchymyn Bwrdd Dyfrffyrdd Prydain (Trosglwyddo Swyddogaethau) 2012 -
Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy (Tudalennau 66 -
67)

E&S(4)-15-12 papur 9

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y

cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 5 ac ar gyfer y cyfarfod ar 23 Mai
(14.30)

Sesiwn breifat

5 Ymchwiliad i Glastir - Ystyried tystiolaeth (14.30 - 15.00)



Eitem 2
Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 1
Inquiry into Glastir - Evidence from NFU Cymru

To: National Assembly for Wales, Date: 271 April 2012
EnV|ror_1ment and Sustainability Ref: DJ/LB
Committee
Cc: Contact: Dafydd Jarrett
Tel: 01341 423 148
Fax:
Email: Dafydd.Jarrett@nfu.org.uk

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES’ ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY
COMMITTEE’S SHORT INQUIRY INTO GLASTIR

Introduction

NFU Cymru welcomes the opportunity to submit written evidence to the Environment and
Sustainability Committee’s short inquiry into Glastir. We look forward to supporting this
written evidence orally at a meeting of the group on the 17t May. NFU Cymru represents
22,380 farmers, managers and partners in agricultural businesses including those with an
interest in farming and the countryside.

1. NFU Cymru would wish to make clear our commitment to having a fit for purpose agri
environment scheme in Wales and having a scheme that is accessible, recognises the
environmental gains and benefits both for those entering the scheme and for the wider rural
economy. Going forward it must be flexible enough to incorporate the sustainable
intensification of agriculture as we meet the new global food challenges whilst at the same
time preserving biodiversity, and allowing us to deal with any challenges that reform of the
CAP may bring upon us.

2. Confidence in any scheme is paramount to get participation and sadly despite
warnings to Welsh Government by NFU Cymru, introducing the All Wales Scheme without a
meaningful pilot exercise has backfired with all the negative publicity and problems scheme
creation ‘on the hoof has generated. Glastir did not live up to expectations because the
scheme and it prescriptions were not thoroughly thought through or robustly tested before
roll out.

3. NFU Cymru recognises that now we are where we are and we are keen to work with
Welsh Government through the current Glastir stocktake exercise to try and make the
scheme ‘it for purpose’. Wales in the past was recognised as one of the innovators of agri
environment in Europe through the Tir Gofal Scheme and we need to regain that status

INFU supported by

The heart of Welsh farming  +,,4a31en y pecyn 1

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU
nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU NFU Mutual

fCYMRU



mailto:Dafydd.Jarrett@nfu.org.uk

which can only be achieved by Welsh Government being mindful of the practicalities of the
scheme and working with land managers, acknowledging and seeking to address their
concerns.

4. Progress has been made following the Rees Roberts Review but more can be done.

5. On the positive side we appreciate that the value of points and the points limit per
option have generally been increased. We are however extremely disappointed and
frustrated that Government did not accept NFU Cymru’s early concerns and contention
expressed at stakeholder meetings that Glastir would need to be based on income forgone
and thus could not be used to reflect or compensate for the natural and permanent
handicaps of farming in the LFA for which there are alternative and specific measures. This
failure has now left hill and upland farmers without a dedicated support mechanism.

6. We recognise some progress has been made towards reducing the size of the
application pack and the further development of the electronic score sheet. In fact application
is now difficult without access to the electronic score sheet and this needs to be made more
explicitly clear to applicants.

7. Moving the application window to nearer the start date has been welcomed but we
feel that this could be progressed even further to a post 151" May date in the year preceding
the scheme start.

8. We welcome the removal of options limits but feel that this could be moved even
further e.g. bird and bat boxes

9. NFU Cymru questions the need for regional packages as it over complicates the
scheme with a very limited uplift in points (10%). Only 9 applicants are signed up under the
regional packages in 2012 which in our view is a reflection of this complexity.

10.  NFU Cymru welcome the changes to two metres in the hedge width as we feel that
the original scheme in general failed to recognise in points terms the value of existing
habitats not only to conservation but also to the landscape in general.

11.  We also encourage Welsh Government to include dry stone walls and earth banks as
point scoring options (both their maintenance and their creation). Until this is done the Glastir
scheme will never be a truly all Wales scheme, and ironically it is LFA farms who often have
these highly significant traditional boundaries as habitats and as landscape features yet no
recognition for their maintenance.

12. It should not be a condition of the scheme that a stocking diary needs to be kept for
the whole farm. Stocking details should only be required for those identified habitats with
specific stocking or date prescriptions and not where compliance is measured in sward
height terms. An activity diary should not need to be kept for land not subject to
prescriptions. In terms of communication it is apparent that of those 1698 farms that have
entered Glastir AWE in 2012 many were not even aware of the need to do this.

13. NFU Cymru welcomes the mixed stocking and the traditional breeds option on habitat
land. However we feel that the stocking rates remain too restrictive and lack flexibility in the
upland options. For example there is no recognition that summer stocking rates could be

The heart of Welsh farming  1,431en y pecyn 2 = NFU

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU ‘,,7
nor the author can accept liabilitv for errors and or omissions. © NFU NFU Mutual [ | C Y M R U




higher without habitat detriment where stock are removed during the winter and that
Agrostis/Fescue swards can sustain appreciably higher stocking rates compared with
Nardus/Molinia swards. We welcome the low inputs option for upland grassland which we
believe will go some way towards helping upland farmers gaining the necessary points.

14.  There is increasing pressure from milk buyers for their producers to be part of an agri-
environment scheme. Ideally we want Glastir AWE to be this scheme rather than be forced
into a position where, to meet buyer demands, there would need to be consideration of
instigating a separate private environment assurance type scheme. We welcome the 75%
slurry injection option which we believe is a step forward in helping dairy farmers enter the
scheme but further work needs to be done to make this scheme an attractive option for the
Dairy sector. We believe that there would be merit in specifically looking at a number of
intensive dairy farms to see how the scheme can be made more attractive to dairy farmers.

15.  Another shortcoming of Glastir is the disconnection between the AWE and Targeted
element. This, we are led to believe is in the process of being addressed with the eventual
and welcome aim that AW and targeted elements will run concurrently. As things stand at
present a farmer needs to make a 5 year commitment to Glastir without knowing if he will
also be eligible for targeted element. This does not make business sense.

16.  Option 8, continued management of existing streamside corridor, is now available on
woodland with thousands of important dingles along streams in Wales; this is to be
welcomed. We would also ask for this to be extended further to allow unimproved land to
qualify for points where the farmer is prepared to increase the management by fencing this
land.

17.  NFU Cymru believes that the Welsh Government needs to revisit other suggestions
that were rejected following the Rees Roberts Review (dry stone walls already mentioned).
Re-evaluating the benefits of high sugar grasses and minimum tillage should be a priority.
We believe that despite WG stating that meeting the challenges of climate change was one
of the key priorities for Glastir, prescriptions that would support this aim are ‘thin on the
ground’. Support for high sugar grasses and minimum tillage would go some way to
addressing this issue. We feel that the WG should offer more flexible dates for arable
operations than currently prescribed and management of scrub needs a points recognition in
the AWE as well as being part of the Targeted Element.

18.  Finally on the AWE, farmers feel that one of the barriers to entry is the low value of
points for existing habitats and features, in recognition of work already done in other
schemes or very often at the farmers own costs. If this could be addressed (recognising of
course the constraint of using income foregone figures) by putting a greater emphasis on
costs incurred (which are within WTO rules) interest in the scheme would increase. As it is
now, it means that for some farms the costs of achieving entry due to the works they need to
carry out means they forfeit one or possibly two year’s annual payment on some farms.
Therefore, in real terms, these farms will not be getting a five year payment but effectively a
three or four year payment for entry into a five year commitment. As a result of this, farmers
may well choose not to join the scheme.

19.  With regard to ACRES this is, in our view, an important element of both the scheme
and the stated overall objectives of Welsh Government itself. We therefore welcome the fact
that from an initial figure of less than 100 from the 2012 applications being offered entry, this

The heart of Welsh farming  ,4ajen y pecyn 3 = NFU

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU ‘,,7
nor the author can accept liabilitv for errors and or omissions. © NFU NFU Mutual [ | C Y M R U




figure has now increased to 720 (approximately half of those in AWE). The ACRES element
of the scheme was one of the primary reasons many farmers, in particular dairy producers,
entered the AWE. We are pleased that this has now belatedly been recognised.

20. Moving forward we fail to see why it must be a condition that before being considered
for ACRES farmers must be in the AWE. The Glastir Woodland Creation and Management
Schemes do not make it compulsory that applicants are also in AWE. We cannot see why a
distinction is drawn. This leads us on to a fundamental point that part schemes are not
available in Wales and this is an omission that in our view needs to be re-examined with
urgency. We believe that this approach could very much help with achievement of WFD
targets. For example with the right financial support under Glastir a number of more intensive
holdings who have not currently considered Glastir as an option would re-consider if the
scheme was restricted to land adjoining water courses and not the whole farm. There would
be no environmental risk to this, as the rest of their farm would be subject to cross
compliance.

21.  Lessons learnt from previous agri environment schemes have been seemingly lost.
The reason for the success of Tir Gofal was that it was a mixture of annual and capital
payments (with generally prompt payment for both). The capital investments were spread out
over the five or ten year period of the scheme. A fundamental weakness of the current
ACRES scheme in which applicants some with capital intensive projects with planning
permission requirements is that farmers are expected to complete all the work within the first
year of the scheme. Furthermore, they are expected to use consultants, which is further
delaying the preparation of their application. This matter needs to be urgently addressed to
allow those farmers who have been invited to apply for ACRES in 2012 the chance to make
use of the grant scheme.

22.  NFU Cymru notes that around one third of Welsh common land is now under Glastir
agreement, much of this is due to the good work of the Common Land Development officers.
Perhaps the presence of such officers and their availability to assist applicants should also
be reflected in the All Wales Element through funding from elsewhere in the Rural
Development Plan. However near to 100% of common land was supported via the now
defunct Tir Mynydd scheme which will represent a major loss to Welsh farmers running into
many millions of pounds. Given the diversity of commons it is generally accepted that it is
those commons with few graziers or with existing understanding between commoners have
been those that have chosen to go in. Very real problems have been encountered in trying to
secure agreements on the larger commons and perhaps the ‘one size fits all’ approach
relating to percentage of commons participation needs to be revisited particularly if that
common is already providing environmental and landscape and access benefits. We again
come back to the recognition or indeed lack of recognition of existing practices in monetary
terms.

23. The educational aspect of Agri Environment schemes has always been important in
the past but yet Glastir AWE fails to recognise and build on the achievements made by many
farmers in communicating the message to young people and the general public. This needs
re-examining.

24.  If Welsh Government is committed to encouraging increased uptake of Glastir then in
our view there needs to be a significant simplification of the AWE of the scheme to make it a
genuine entry level agri environment scheme that allows the majority of farmers the

The heart of Welsh farming  1,4a1en y pecyn 4 = NFU

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU ‘,,7
nor the author can accept liabilitv for errors and or omissions. © NFU NFU Mutual [ | C Y M R U




opportunity to apply to the scheme without requiring outside assistance. In recent weeks we
have also received reports that finalised 2012 contracts and maps do not fully reflect what
had previously been agreed between the applicant and WG at interview. There is a need for
all the scheme literature, application forms, interview process and record keeping
requirements to fit in with the principles set out within the Working Smarter report. Unless the
application process and implementation of Glastir AWE can be significantly simplified then
the WG need to allow officers to help with applications for both elements of the scheme AWE
and targeted.

25.  NFU Cymru believes that funding should be totally flexible between different areas of
the scheme and regularly reviewed so that early decisions can be made to ascertain if
internal movements of funds are necessary. The core of applications in AWE will be known
early on in the financial year which allows the balance to be worked out for other parts of the
scheme. Farmers are business people and like all businesses need to plan their investments
and income. The earlier they are given an indication of qualification the better this will be all
round.

26.  Turning to LFA support the clear and unequivocal view of NFU Cymru which we have
made clear to the Deputy Minister Alun Davies on a number of occasions is that LFA (or in
future ANC) support must come from Pillar 2. The additional payment to Areas of Natural
Constraint mentioned in the CAP Reform consultation comes from Pillar 1 not from Pillar 2.
This, we do not consider acceptable as it is diluting the SAF payment across all of Wales.
The European Commission explicitly provides for compensatory allowances under Pillar 2 to
be paid by National Governments to offset the effects of farming in areas of permanent
handicap. The EC Commissioner Dacian Ciolos has in recent weeks reaffirmed the
statements made by his staff that compensatory payments to farms affected by natural
handicap (LFA farms) can be provided under a specific LFA scheme like Tir Mynydd if Welsh
Government sees fit to do so. Sadly the position following the March 2012 payment is that
Wales with approximately 80% of its land in the Less Favoured Area no longer has a
scheme which recognises the difficulty and cost of farming in Wales’ Less Favoured Areas. It
is disappointing that Wales is now one of the few countries in Europe without a dedicated
LFA support mechanism.

27. Inthis period of change we also believe it is important as part of this short inquiry that
this Committee seeks confirmation from the Deputy Minister for Agriculture, Food, Fisheries
and European Programmes that:

1) £89m has been allocated for Axis 2 measures and that this is the

spend on Axis 2 schemes in 2011 and 2012.

2) A full breakdown of how this budget was spent on Axis 2 measures in 2011 and

2012 should be sought.

3) The projected spend on the various elements of the Glastir scheme for 2013 should

be sought.

4) the projected spend from 2014 onwards on agri-environment measures should be
sought.

28.  With the removal of Axes under the RDP post 2014 a commitment to spending on agri
environment schemes will be important in building industry confidence in the scheme

The heart of Welsh farming 1 galen y pecyn 5 ]}S,f‘”g“NFU
F

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU

nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU NFU Mutual H’ ‘ C Y M R U




We would be happy to clarify/expand further on these points when NFU Cymru provides oral
evidence on 17t May. We commend the committee for its interest in this matter.

nor the author can accept liability for errors and or omissions. © NFU NFU Mutual

The heart of Welsh farming  1,4alen y pecyn 6 wa /NFU

Although every effort has been made to ensure accuracy, neither the NFU C Y M R U



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&QS(4)-15-12 paper 2

Inquiry into Glastir - Evidence from the Farmer’s Union of
Wales

Evidence from the Farmers’ Union of Wales to the Environment

and Sustainability Committee’s Inquiry into Glastir

1. The Farmers’ Union of Wales welcomes the opportunity to
submit evidence to the Environment and Sustainability

Committee’s short inquiry into the Glastir Scheme.

2. The FUW has welcomed the Minister’s invitation to provide
constructive ideas on how to improve the Scheme and trusts that

Committee’s timely review will help to inform this debate.

3. The FUW was represented on the Welsh Assembly Government’s
Glastir Stakeholders’ Group, which was set up following the
Minister’s announcement in 2009, ostensibly to contribute to

the development of the Glastir Scheme.

4. The Union has spent a great deal of time discussing the Scheme

with Welsh Government Ministers and officials since

inception, trying to feed in constructive ideas based on practical

experience into the development of the Scheme.

5. Unfortunately, over this time, industry concerns and suggestions
were largely ignored, until the poor uptake of the Scheme during
its first application round resulted in the Rees Roberts Review in

2010.

6. The FUW remains concerned that the Scheme is perceived by
farmers as being complex and bureaucratic and the level of
record keeping requirements, coupled with its focus on taking
productive land out of farming, has resulted in poor uptake to

date.

Background

7. Axis 2 of the Rural Development Plan covers measures to
improve the environment and the countryside, including support

for less favoured areas (Tir Mynydd).

8. In May 2009, the Minister announced the introduction of a new
Scheme, called Glastir, which would comprise two elements; the
first open to all farmers in Wales and the second to be targeted
at those areas which could deliver benefits on carbon storage,
water quality, water storage, biodiversity, historic landscape and

access.

9. In order to compensate for the end of the Tir Mynydd Scheme,
which closed for new applications in 2010 and paid out for the
last time in 2012, the then Minister, Elin Jones, announced that

Tudalen y pecyn 7



those farming in Less Favoured Areas (LFAs) would be entitled to
a 20% uplift in their All Wales Element (AWE) payment to
approximately £33.60/ha.

10. Whilst the Union continues to oppose the decision to
abandon a Less Favoured Area scheme based on long-
established handicap criteria, involving minimum bureaucracy, it
has worked to ensure that Glastir is accessible to as many
farmers as possible to help mitigate the impact the withdrawal
of Tir Mynydd will inevitably have on the majority of farmers in
Wales.

11. The FUW continues to be concerned that although the
implementation of Glastir might meet the Assembly’s
environmental sustainability criteria, it remains unconvinced that
the Scheme will deliver economic and social sustainability in
rural areas.

Progress on implementing the recommendations of the Rees
Roberts Review

12. The Rees Roberts Review was instigated during November
2010, following the poor response to the first Glastir application
round. It focussed on the practicalities of on-farm
implementation of the options available under the All Wales
Element, but unfortunately fell short of examining the principles
and stated outcomes of the Scheme.

13. Following a detailed review of the Scheme, within the
parameters of the terms of reference, the group submitted 69
recommendations to the Minister, many of which were
implemented immediately, although some, such as the
maintenance of traditional boundaries and flexibility for the
sowing of arable crops, were rejected.

14. There were also a number of recommendations
considered as part of the Review which were not carried forward
for a range of reasons. The FUW believe that these should now
be revisited as part of a wider examination of the Scheme.

15. As outlined above, many of the recommendations such as
reducing the size of the application pack and the provision of
stand alone summaries, have been introduced, although the
FUW also believes that, given the ‘overload’ of changes,
guidance and information that surrounded the announcement of
the Review, many farmers were confused by the process which
could have resulted in them not going ahead with applications.

16. The FUW also believes that many farmers are still unaware
of many of the changes implemented as part of the Rees Roberts
Review and believes there is a need for a comprehensive
communication strategy to highlight the changes that have been
adopted since 2011.

Tudalen y pecyn 8



Barriers to Entry

17. The FUW believes that whilst the changes adopted
following the Rees Roberts Review were to be welcomed, the
lack of an effective communication plan meant that there were a
number of prospective applicants who were unaware of the
changes.

18. This position was not helped by the difficulties in
accessing up-to- date information on the Welsh Government’s
website and the general confusion surrounding the Scheme
amongst the farming community in general.

19. One of the most helpful tools for farmers considering
Glastir is the scorecard, which allows farmers to assess the work
they need to undertake to achieve their points threshold for
entry into Glastir.

20. Unfortunately, for many farmers, the delays in updating
the scorecard with the changes made following the Review
meant that a number of farmers were unaware of the changes to
the prescriptions, which may have acted as a barrier to uptake.

21. The FUW also believes that the name ‘Glastir’ has now
become synonymous with confusion and negative connotations
and consideration should be given to whether the name of the
Scheme should be changed as part of a review of the Scheme.

22. Positive aspects of the Scheme, such as ACRES have been
overshadowed by the negative perceptions of confusion and
constant change associated with trying to deliver Glastir on an
over ambitious timeline, which, the Union maintains should have
been delayed until 2014.

23. The publication of the ‘Greening’ proposals for CAP
reform has created a great deal of concern amongst farmers
that, signing up for Glastir could result in the need for major
changes to agreements post 2014.

24. Whilst the FUW has welcomed the Minister’s commitment
to allowing farmers flexibility to consider their future options
when there is certainty on the final shape of the CAP reform, it is
concerned that farmers are opting to ‘wait and see’ what the
final regulations are.

25. The decision to incorporate a capital element into the
payment of the Scheme as opposed to running a stand alone
capital grants scheme, has also acted as a barrier to entry as the
premise of the payment versus points has never really been
understood by the industry.

26. The requirement for payments to be independently
verified by an external body has meant that the payment per
point has failed to reflect the reality of farm costings. Despite
the uplift in the basic rate from £28 to £34, following the 2011
review of payments, the loss of the 20% uplift for LFA farmers
meant that their payments did not increase at all.

Tudalen y pecyn 9



27. The Glastir Scheme originally proposed compensating
farmers for the loss of Tir Mynydd through a 20% uplift in AWE
payments. In failing to get this element through the EU, many
farmers are concerned that there is no longer any support
measure which recognises the handicaps of farming within the
LFA.

28. From an internal consultation undertaken to provide this
evidence, many farmers who have chosen not to enter Glastir
this year have cited the amount of additional record keeping
required which makes the Scheme less attractive when compared
with the amount of money which will be received.

29. Those farmers with predominantly improved land have
also commented that taking land out of production for such a
small payment does not make financial sense.

30. Barriers to entry remain the real or perceived complexity
of the application process and the size of the application pack
(acknowledging that this has been reduced for this year).

31. Concerns about the general requirements of the Scheme,
such as the activity diaries and other record keeping
requirements which are not always fully understood by
applicants are also cited as a reason for not applying to the
Scheme.

32. Whilst many of the recommendations of the Rees Roberts
Review were adopted by the Minister, the lack of an effective
communication plan and the rushed adoption of the
recommendations meant that many of the improvements are still
misunderstood or not known by the wider farming community.

33. The FUW is aware that there will be a number of farmers
whose interest in the entry level Glastir will be dependent on
gaining entry into the higher level scheme - i.e. those farmers
currently in Tir Gofal and receiving substantial payments - and
there remains concern that, some farmers will not be able to
forward plan until they know whether they be accepted into the
Higher level scheme.

Flexibility between the funding of different elements of the
scheme.

34. Given the poor uptake to the Glastir Scheme to date, it is
vital to ensure that there is flexibility within the Scheme to allow
for the movement of resources between elements of the
Scheme.

35. One of the most popular and successful elements of
Glastir is the ACRES scheme which was heavily oversubscribed
this year. The FUW was disappointed that initially only 120
applications had been successful, but have welcomed the recent
moves to increase this number, which is important, given the
significant under-spend on Glastir to date.

Tudalen y pecyn 10



36. In order to ensure that Axis 2 monies are not lost, due to
the under-spend caused by the poor uptake of Glastir, the FUW
believes that the budget for ACRES should be increased to allow
more farmers to benefit from the Scheme and that a separate
LFA component be introduced to mitigate the impact of the
withdrawal of the Tir Mynydd Scheme.

Funding available for farmers in less favoured areas

37. Over 80% of Wales is designated as Less Favoured Area
and, of that, 72% is categorised as Severely Disadvantaged Area.
The current Tir Mynydd Scheme represents a significant
proportion of the income of the majority of hill farmers, and the
FUW is extremely concerned that, unless the Glastir Scheme is
taken up by the majority of farmers, there could be severe
impacts on farming families within these areas, with an
inevitable knock-on effect on the wider rural economy.

38. The final claim year for the Tir Mynydd Scheme was 2011
and the final payment has just been made in March 2012.
39. The real impact of the loss of the Tir Mynydd Scheme on

cash flows will not be seen until 2013 when the reality of the
Scheme’s demise impacts on the rural economy within the LFAs
of Wales.

40. The Union also believes that there is an urgent need for
an economic impact assessment within rural areas on the effects
of the withdrawal of Tir Mynydd, so that measures to mitigate
the likely losses can be developed.

Conclusion

41. Whilst acknowledging the positive changes that have been
made to the Glastir AWE since the Rees Roberts Review, the FUW
remains concerned that the Scheme is bureaucratic and the level
of record keeping required goes well beyond that of an ‘Entry
Level Scheme’

42, In welcoming the Minister’s latest review of Glastir, the
FUW hopes that there is the scope and will to go further than
tinkering around the edges of the Scheme, so that it becomes a
practical proposition for the majority of farmers in Wales.

Tudalen y pecyn 11



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 3
Inquiry into Glastir - Evidence from the CLA

CLA Wales paper of written evidence for the Environment and
Sustainability Committee in advance of the oral evidence session
on Glastir on 17 May 2012

In reply to the Committee’s questions:-

Q:

The progress made by the Welsh Government to implement the
recommendations made by the Rees Roberts review

CLA Wales welcomed the changes made following the Rees Roberts review, but we
think that they did not go far enough in addressing many of the issues identified by
the group. We would like the Welsh Government to revisit the minutes of the
meetings to further discuss suggestions made by the group which were not adopted.

For example:

There is a strong feeling from members that diary keeping requirements are too
onerous. They accept that a diary is required for land under management within the
scheme but they do not accept that a diary needs to be kept for all land.

Farmers would like more than two years to complete capital works.
The greatest barriers to the scheme are:-

Market buoyancy means that the small payment offered per hectare under Glastir is
not so appealing.

The bad press surrounding Glastir puts people off.

The requirement for the creation of habitats rather than the maintenance of existing
ones. Farmers are discovering that by having already completed work to improve
field boundaries, they would have to create more habitat in order to get enough
points to get into the scheme. Many are looking for support in maintaining their most
valuable habitats rather than utilising improved land in the creation of new habitat.
CLA Wales believes that we should be working to maintain and improve our existing
habitat, rather than converting improved or even semi-improved land away from food
production. We are also concerned that any farmer who does convert improved land
to habitat creation will result in a loss of capital value for that asset, as it is unlikely
that it could be converted back to intensive grassland if habitat has been created on
it. The CLA accepts that payments can only be made on the basis of compensation
for profit foregone plus costs, but we do believe that a more creative approach can
be made when creating management options.

Misunderstanding of payment rates with an assumption that they are being paid less
than they would for any activity under Tir Gofal.

Tudalen y pecyn 12



o The assumption that it is difficult to complete the application form.

o The scheme is very complicated, especially considering that it is supposed to be an
entry level scheme. For example, the regional options had very little uptake and are
very difficult for potential applicants to grasp.

Q: Funding arrangements, including:

Flexibility between the funding of different elements of the scheme

ACRES has been a good driver for the scheme. Many farmers are entering Glastir
All-Wales Element (AWE) in order to access ACRES.

Targeted Element (“TE”) could be a good driver for the scheme, however, as
farmers have no idea about the probability of gaining entry to the TE. They also have
no clear indication of what may be required or what they are likely to be paid. There
is also a great time lapse between expressing an interest in Glastir until TE can be
taken up. We would recommend that the TE scheme could be made available to all
farmers within the targeted areas, not just the ones who have already entered into
the AWE. This would then attract farmers into Glastir AWE.

Forestry CLA Wales has great concerns that the woodland element of Glastir is
heading in the same direction as the originally launched Glastir AWE. The
stakeholder group membership includes knowledgeable practitioners and
stakeholder organisations that are all keen to ensure Glastir is successful and fit for
purpose. CLA Wales is urging the Welsh Government to take on board advice from
the stakeholder group in the development of the scheme.

It is imperative that there is flexibility to move funds between different elements of
Glastir to ensure that the budget is spent in each year. CLA Wales expects the
number of applications to enter the scheme on 1 January 2013 to be limited. Land
managers already engaged in agri-environment schemes will not be entering the
scheme until 1 January 2014 after their existing schemes have come to an end.

Funding available for farmers in less favoured areas (“LFA’s”)

In looking at payments to LFA’s under Glastir, CLA Wales believes that we should
consider the larger picture post CAP review. We believe that it is imperative that
payments to all farmers in Wales should be equitable. There are fears that there
could be a great increase in Single Farm Payments to LFA areas as a result of the
CAP review. Therefore, payments under Glastir need to take into account the levels
of payments made to LFA’s post CAP review. We also accept that there are
limitations to payment rates for Glastir due to the World Trade Organisation
parameters of payments being made for compensation for profit foregone plus costs.
However, we believe that a more creative approach can be taken to ensure that an
appropriate rate is paid.

Contact:
Sue Evans, Director of Policy, CLA Wales

01547 317085
sue.evans@cla.org.uk

Tudalen y pecyn 13



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 4

N Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru
C—' Countryside Council for Wales

Countryside Council for Wales

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY
COMMITTEE

INQUIRY INTO GLASTIR LAND MANAGEMENT SCHEME

SUBMISSION BY COUNTRYSIDE COUNCIL FOR WALES

Summary

CCW welcomes this opportunity to present evidence to the Committee. We have had
considerable experience in both the design and the delivery of agri-environment
schemes. The issues we wish to emphasise are as follows:

CCW welcomes this opportunity to present evidence to the Committee. We have had
considerable experience in both the des ign and the delivery of agri-environment
schemes. The issues we wish to emphasise are as follows:

(). CCW strongly supports the philosophy underpinning Glastir, in
particular the recognition that an integrated approach to land management
schemes can play a major role managing a wide range of ecosystem goods
and services.

(i). Along with a range of other agencies and NGO’s, CCW has devoted
considerable effort to both the design and the delivery of Glastir. We will
continue to play our part during the period leading up to the creation of the
new body charged with managing Wales’ natural resources.

(iii). Internationally important Natura 2000 sites and nationally important
SSSI's feature prominently amongst existing AWE and CLE contracts as well
as in the list of farms selected for the Targeted Element (TE). CCW welcomes
the role of the new scheme in bringing designated sites into appropriate
management and is working to ensure that all necessary SSSI consents are in
place.

(iv). Whilst the rate at which first round applications have been converted
into contracts is rightly a cause for concern, initial signings have taken place at

= f? Noddir gan
‘k/ ( Jré Lywodraeth Cymru
[J‘ﬁ) }

Sponsored by
Welsh Government

Gofalu am natur Cymru - ar y tir ac yn y mér e Caring for our natural heritage - on land and in the sea

Prif Swyddfa/Headquarters
MAES-Y-FFYNNON, PENRHOSGARNEDD, BANGOR LL57 2DW; FFON/TEL: 01248 385500; FFACS/FAX: 01248 355782

http://www.ccw.gov.uk

Tudalen y pecyn 14



a time when most previously signed agri-environment contracts are still
operative and against a backdrop of rising agricultural returns and
uncertainties over CAP reform. Experience with other agri-environment
schemes shows that many farmers wait to see whether “early adopters” are
able to combine scheme requirements with the demands of running a
successful farming business. In this sense, the existing 1700 AWE contract
holders are likely to play a pivotal role over the next few years.

(v). It will be vitally important to carry out sufficient “care and maintenance”
visits. These are needed to ensure that all participants In Glastir fully
understand their commitments under the new scheme. A mentoring
programme should be established to ensure that existing contract holders can
provide advice to applicants and new signings.

(vi). Further major changes to the existing scheme prior to the launch of the
new WRDP are likely to result in a loss of momentum. Glastir is now the only
available major tool with which to address ongoing biodiversity decline, meet
WEFD targets and ensure that farmers can play a central role in tackling climate
change.

(viii). More work is needed to determine why such a high proportion of initial
AWE applicants did not sign a contract, but CCW believes that the emphasis
over the next 18 months should be on improving the processes by which
Glastir applications are submitted and converted into contracts, establishing
the TE delivery system and removing any incentives to create perverse
environmental outcomes under the AWE.

(ix). CCW has made eighteen recommendations in order to improve the
delivery of Glastir (see section 10). Most are intended to improve the delivery
process, but in order to safeguard the biodiversity value of existing semi-
natural habitats, we strongly believe the use of AWE options 15B and 15D
should only be permitted on improved grasslands.

(x). Despite the improvements already made, the Regional packages still add
a significant level of complexity to the application packs. CCW supports the
use of such packages, but feels that they could be delivered in a much more
inspiring way. At the same time the quantity of paperwork sent to each
applicant could be significantly reduced.

(xi). The current requirement to obtain points from at least three AWE options
is intended to ensure a reasonable level of uptake is maintained across the full
range of prescriptions. CCW supports this approach in principle, but feels it
can disadvantage farmers with large areas of semi-natural upland habitat. Such
farmers should be able to obtain all of their points from just one habitat option
provided they have enough land.

(xii). Some 420 farms have now been selected for a visit under the TE
including at least 70 commons. It will be essential to ensure that sufficient
contract managers are in place to deliver this part of the scheme, bearing in
mind that that implementation has only just begun.

(xiii). Permitting TE participants to enter the AWE/CLE at the same time as
signing a TE contract could lead to significant administrative savings. Such an

Tudalery yopecyn 15



approach would simplify the process of preparing TE contracts whilst ensuring
that the measures applied under different parts of Glastir are fully integrated.

(xiv). The remaining Tir Gofal and Tir Cynnal contracts will come to an end on
31°' December 2013, risking the possibility that the rate of agri-environment
participation will be lower during the early years of the next Wales Rural
Development Plan than it is at present. Failure to secure investments already
made will lead to a sharp decline in performance against previously agreed
SSSI condition targets.

1. Introduction

1.1.  The Countryside Council for Wales champions the environment and
landscapes of Wales and its coastal waters as sources of natural and cultural riches,
as a foundation for economic and social activity, and as a place for leisure and
learning opportunities. We aim to make the environment a valued part of everyone's
life in Wales.

1.2.  Agricultural land and woodland occupy some 90% of Wales. Both farming and
forestry impact significantly on the ability of CCW to deliver against its core functions
in relation to biodiversity, landscape and public access to the countryside. CCW
strongly supports the philosophy underpinning Glastir, in particular the recognition
that an integrated approach to the design and delivery of land management schemes
can play a major role managing a wide range of ecosystem goods and services.

1.3. The Welsh Government is currently committed to continuing to allocate around
70% of Welsh Rural Development Plan (WRDP) resources to land management
during the period 2014- 2020". Within this context, CCW recommends that that new
WRDP should continue to remain focused on measures designed to reverse
biodiversity loss; improve water management; tackle climate change; safeguard
cultural landscapes and enhance public access to the countryside in line with existing

Welsh Government and EU targets 24

1.4. CCW supports the design principles underpinning the provision of the Glastir
agri-environment scheme by the Welsh Government. Whilst the prescriptions
available under the All Wales Element (AWE) and Common Land Element (CLE)
require less commitment than was the case under predecessor schemes such as Tir
Gofal, participation in these parts of Glastir should still help to bring about
improvements in the condition of designated sites and the state of the wider
countryside. The more demanding Targeted Element (TE) then focuses WRDP
resources on those areas where action is most urgently required in order to meet the
biodiversity, water and climate change targets set by the Welsh Government and the
EU. A greater emphasis on landscape and public access issues would also seem to
be appropriate, bearing in mind the role of tourism within the Welsh economy.

! Sustaining a Living Wales: A Green Paper on new approach to natural resource management in Wales. Welsh Government
Consultation Document. January 2012. (page 15)
2 Sustaining a Living Wales: A Green Paper on a new approach to natural resource management in Wales. January 2012.
gpages 7-8)

Environment Strategy for Wales (2006). Welsh Government.
* The European Environment — State and Outlook 2010. European Environment Agency. Accessible at:
http://www.eea.europa.eu/soer/synthesis/synthesis/chapterl.xhtml
® EU Biodiversity Strategy. Accessible at:
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/nature/biodiversity/comm2006/pdf/2020/1 EN_ACT partl v7[1].pdf

Tudalen g pecyn 16



http://www.eea.europa.eu/soer

2. CCW's Role in Glastir

2.1.  During the period 2009-10, much of CCW's input to the new scheme involved
advising on the design of the management options to be used within the AWE, CLE
and TE. CCW'’s scientific and advisory staff also worked closely with EAW and the
voluntary sector in assisting Rural Affairs to prepare the GIS maps used to select
farms for participation in the TE.

2.2. Over the last eight een months, CCW'’s role has shifted and n ow includes a
much greater emphasis on adv ising on s cheme delivery as it affects designated
sites. All Glastir applic ations which involve placing management options on Sites of
Special Sc ientific Interest (SSSI) requi re prior consultation with  CCW before the
contract can be issued °. This approach is designed to eliminate the risk of a farmer
signing a Glastir contract affe cting an SSSI only to discove r that the contract cannot
be implem ented as CCW is unable issue consent for the relevant management
option(s).

2.3. Atleast 284 of the AWE applications received during the first round are known
to involve SSSI's. CCW has now processed 204 cases, but 26 of these need to be
revisited owing to changes that have taken place since the initial application was
submitted. Subject to receiving the necessary information from RPD, it is hoped that
all remaining first round consents relating to the AWE can be issued by mid-May
2012.

2.4. Afurther 113 SSSI’s are either wholly or partly covered by the first round of
CLE contracts whilst some 250 TE cases are also known to affect SSSI's. Whilst
such a significant role in SSSI management is extremely welcome, the processing of
the necessary consents also places substantial demands on CCW’s Regional staff.
This is especially noticeable in those CCW Districts where Glastir SSSI cases are
most heavily concentrated. It is also very evident that many of the Glastir
workstreams (AWE, TE, CLE, woodland creation and woodland planting) overlap in
terms of the timing of the inputs required from CCW. These inputs now cover the
provision of pre-application advice to farmers, Grazing Associations and Common
Land Development Officers (CLDO’s); negotiations over SSSI consents for the AWE,
CLE and TE; advice on woodland planting and woodland management proposals
along with regular liaison with a wide range of staff from across the Rural Affairs
Department.

2.5. With staff from across all CCW Regions now committing substantial resources
to Glastir, two part-time process managers have been recently appointed in order to
manage data flows and co-ordinate tracking of consents across the organisation.
CCW staff are liaising with the Rural Payments Division on a weekly basis regarding
both individual cases and the overall consenting process. CCW is also intending to
review its internal Glastir processes to see if these can be improved from the
perspective of both SSSI owners and staff.

2.6. Whilst staff have been working hard to ensure that consents are provided to
cover any Glastir applications affecting statutory sites, CCW nevertheless has a legal
duty to refuse any proposals which will have a detrimental effect on the features of an
SSSI. In particular, there is higher burden of proof in the case of internationally

6 Legal advice is that CCW's powers under the Wildlife and Countryside Act cannot be delegated to the Welsh Government.

Tudaler yopecyn 17



important sites, where compliance with the EC Habitats Regulations means that any
proposals on a Natura 2000 site should be refused unless the risk of adverse
consequences can be ruled out.

2.7. The interaction between SSSI's and the CLE has proved to be problematic in
some cases, although the completion of 107 Glastir CLE contracts during the first
round of the scheme represents a notable success. Nearly 68,000ha of common land
are now under more sustainable management’ of which no less than 23,880 ha
(35%) is accounted for by 39 separate SSSI’s.

2.8. In particular, CCW would like to pay tribute to the work of the Common Land
Development Officers. Previous experience with both Tir Cymen and Tir Gofal has
demonstrated that facilitators play an essential role in ensuring the delivery of co-
operative agri-environment schemes.

2.9. Where the condition of an SSSI is satisfactory and/or unlikely to be damaged
by the continuation of existing grazing practice, CCW staff have been asking Grazing
Associations to provide details of their current stocking levels as the basis for an
SSSI consent. This is because the maximum stocking levels permitted under the
CLE (and which apply across the whole of Wales irrespective of local conditions)
may be too high in some instances. In a number of cases, however, the relevant
Grazing Associations have been unwilling to provide such figures as they fear that
any resulting SSSI consent may affect their future SPS entitlements and/ or their
capacity to increase grazing levels once any Glastir contract comes to an end.

2.10. In order to address such fears, CCW have provided Welsh Government with a
written statement regarding the treatment of expired Notices of Consent. This has
also been shared with relevant stakeholders such as the Wales Commons Forum. In
particular, as and when Glastir contracts expire, Grazing Associations will either be
able to continue grazing at the levels permitted under Glastir (provided this has not
caused damage to the SSSI) or will usually be able to revert to the levels and pattern
of grazing applicable at the time the SSSI was first notified (in some cases this may
require a further consent from the new Single Body, depending on the wording of the
individual SSSI natification).

3. Scheme Delivery

Agricultural Land

3.1.  Atotal of 2940 Glastir applications were submitted during the first round of the
AWE. The majority of these arrived during the last three days of the application
window. The Tir Gofal scheme also started relatively slowly, with only 1381
applications received in the first round and 877 in the second. Experience with other
agri-environment schemes shows that many farmers wait to see whether “early
adopters” are able to combine scheme requirements with the demands of running a
successful farming business. During the first round of Glastir applications, this
tendency on the part of many farmers to take a relatively cautious approach was
reinforced by the Welsh Government’s decision to extend the existing Tir Gofal and
Tir Cynnal contracts alongside the Tir Mynydd scheme.

’ Welsh Government Ministerial Statement on Glastir. 1st February 2012.

Tudalen g pecyn 18



3.2. The total number of AWE contracts arising out of the first round now stands at
1698 and these cover an area of 154,014 hectares. Whilst a conversion rate of 58%
is rightly a cause for concern, it is worth noting that the area now under contract still
represents some 9% of the Welsh agricultural land area. Moreover, this level of
uptake has been achieved at a time when most of the previously signed agri-
environment contracts were still operative.

3.3. Further investigation is required to determine why such a high proportion of
initial AWE applicants did not proceed to sign a contract. In some cases this may be
because it was too difficult for existing agri-environment participants to meet the
points threshold required. Despite the assurances provided by the Welsh
Government, some applicants likely to have been deterred by the uncertainties
created by the impending reform of the CAP. Others may have seen recent rises in
agricultural returns as providing an alternative route to building a more secure
business by comparison with the levels of payment available under the AWE. Finally,
it appears that significant proportion of those who submitted an application may have
been deterred by the nature of the process including the volume of information
provided in the application packs as well as the need to maintain activity and/or
stocking diaries.

3.4. The second round of the AWE has recently ended with a further 700
applications being submitted. This figure is lower than expected, in particular since
the last Tir Mynydd payments were made at the start of 2012. By contrast, there
appears to have been significant level of interest in the CLE with a further 50
expressions of interest (Eol) submitted. Relatively buoyant agricultural returns
coupled with the prospect of further CAP reform seem likely to have led many
potential applicants to hold back from the AWE. Other farmers may have been
deterred by the nature of the application process including the new requirement to
provide an annotated map as part of each application.

3.5.  Whilst a third application round will presumably commence early in 2013, the
general requirement for all contracts to be signed on 1% January in the subsequent
year appears to present some difficulties. Under the current arrangements, all
contracts prepared during 2013 would need to commence on 1% January 2014 — by
which time a new Wales Rural Development Plan (WRDP) is supposed be in place.
This issue will hopefully be addressed within the transitional Regulations due to
emerge as part of the ongoing CAP reform process. Nevertheless, in order to
maintain momentum under the Glastir programme, CCW is keen to ensure that at
least one more application round is held under the auspices of the current WRDP.

3.6. The remaining Tir Gofal and Tir Cynnal contracts will come to an end on 31%
December 2013, risking the possibility that the rate of agri-environment participation
will be less during the early years of the next Wales Rural Development Plan than it
is at the moment. With this in mind, CCW believes that the emphasis over the next
18 months should be on improving the process by which Glastir AWE and CLE
applications can be submitted and converted into contracts as well as on establishing
the TE delivery system. Major changes to the existing scheme prior to the launch of
the new WRDP could result in a further loss of momentum, especially since any new
prescriptions and/or payment rates are likely to require renewed negotiations with the
European Commission alongside the need to explain the implications of a re-
designed scheme to both new and existing applicants.

Tudalesy yopecyn 19



3.7. ltis worth re-visiting the experience of the Tir Gofal scheme following the first
application window in 1999. On that occasion nearly 50% of the applicants were
unsuccessful and failed to re-apply in the subsequent round despite the fact that the
selection method had been changed. The Glastir scheme has already been through
so many changes that a period of stability now appears to be essential.

Woodland

3.8. At the outset of the development of Glastir, support for both woodland creation
and woodland management was provided by the Better Woodlands for Wales (BWW)
scheme as administered by the Forestry Commission Wales (FCW). Whilst new
Glastir Woodland Creation and Glastir Woodland Management Schemes have now
been developed, full integration of the woodland element into Glastir (with
administration by Welsh Government) will not occur until the end of 2012. As a
result, the current Glastir scheme fails to provide a seamless treatment of tree and
woodland incentives. For instance, some upland acid grasslands submitted under
AWE are potentially available for Glastir Woodland Creation, but are likely to be
locked in under AWE requirement to maintain semi-natural habitats under the Whole
Farm Code. In addition, non-farming applicants to the Glastir woodland schemes
tend to experience more difficulty in dealing with processes which are designed
primarily for agricultural schemes.

3.9. The Glastir Woodland Creation Scheme was initiated to deliver the target of
creating 100,000ha of new woodland over a 20 year period, as recommended by the
Land Use and Climate Change report to Welsh Government in 2010. The aim was to
produce a streamlined application process and the resulting ‘woodland opportunities
map’ on the FCW website categorised consultation requirements according to a
spatially based a set of constraints (including biodiversity and historic features).

3.10. In practice, many landowners are more interested in creating new woodland
on land of low productivity, much of which is semi-natural habitat. Unfortunately this
can conflict with the principle of conserving priority habitats and so-called section 42
species®. These habitats and species comprise the indicators for the achievement of
Outcome 21 of the Wales Environment Strategy (2006) viz:

“The loss of biodiversity has been halted and we can see a definite recovery in the
number, range and genetic diversity of species”.

3.11. CCW considers that it is essential that the assessment of applications under
the Glastir Woodland Creation Scheme continues to be carried out by trained and
fully independent officials so as to avoid potential conflicts of interest.

3.12. CCW is also concerned that the current Glastir Woodland Creation scheme is
relatively inflexible. For instance, it cannot be used to assist with the creation of new
woodland by natural regeneration, nor can it easily be used to support the
requirements of the guidance in New Native Woodlands (FC Bulletin 112). As
previously mentioned, there are some areas within designated sites (SSSI),
particularly within the uplands, where new native woodland creation would be

8 As listed in section 42 of Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (Habitats & Species of Principal Importance

for Conserving Biodiversity in Wales)
Tudalen y pecyn 20



beneficial, but the Glastir Woodland Creation scheme may not be applicable in such
cases and no other grant schemes are available at present. In addition, there are
opportunities elsewhere to develop new native woodlands which meet higher
ecological standards than those likely to be provided under the Glastir Woodland
Creation Scheme.

3.13. Experience of the Glastir Woodland Management Scheme is still very limited
as the first window for “expressions of interest” only closed at the end of March 2012.
A number of the farms selected for the Glastir Targeted Element fall within the
woodland objectives GIS layer and will be asked to carry out woodland management
as part of their contracts. It is still too early to gauge how effective this process will
be.

4. Implementation of Recommendations from the Rees Roberts Review

4.1. CCW was not represented on the Glastir Independent Review Group, but
submitted detailed comments in writingg. Our principal concern at that time was to
ensure the maximum number of Glastir contracts were signed as soon as possible.
This aspiration remains, alongside the expectation that each individual AWE contract
will generate an environmental gain in its own right as well as providing a suitable
platform for the delivery of the Targeted Element.

4.2. Glastir is now the main route for promoting the ecosystem approach to land
management as described in “Sustaining a Living Wales” as well as for meeting the
environmental targets set out the Welsh Environment Strategy (especially those
relating to EU-level obligations in respect of Natura 2000 sites and the Water
Framework Directive). The previous NAW Sustainability Committee Inquiry into
biodiversity is also relevant, in particular the recommendation that “The review of the
Glastir scheme should be utilised to make sure the scheme makes the best possible
contribution to the achievement of biodiversity targets”.

4.3. The Glastir Independent Review Group made 69 recommendations covering
both scheme design and process, the majority of which were accepted by the Welsh
Government. CCW was particularly supportive of the proposal to merge options 16-
18 into a single upland option, but with the stocking rates calculated according to the
proportions of the various semi-natural habitats c.f. the approach taken on common
land. The creation of new options 41A and 41B has significantly reduced the number
of difficulties encountered in issuing SSSI consents (the previous use of the
“predominant habitats rule” often generated an inappropriate stocking rate).

4.4. CCW was also broadly supportive of the proposal to create a reduced entry
level threshold. This recommendation had the capacity to significantly affect scheme
outcomes - weakening them if the overall quantity of environmental outputs was
reduced, but strengthening them if farms that would otherwise not have joined the
scheme were enabled to do so. Ideally, the reduced entry level should provide a
stepping stone for more intensively managed farms to move into the full AWE
scheme at some point during the first five years of the contract. Similarly, since
participants in the reduced entry level are now allowed to access ACRES, this should
provide an alternative to the TE when dealing with water quality issues. More work is
required to establish the extent to which this is indeed taking place.

°A copy of CCW's submission is available on request

Tudaley yopecyn 21



4.5. CCW continues to have substantial concerns about the implementation of a
number of other Review Group recommendations. In particular, the creation of
options 15B and 15D allows for applications of up to 50kg/ha of inorganic nitrogen
alongside up to 50kg/ha of organic nitrogen per annum to all permanent pastures
(including existing semi-natural habitats). Previous research shows that nitrogen
applications of only 25 kg/ha per year (applied as inorganic fertiliser) can cause
significant damage to the flora of species-rich grasslands'®. Farmyard manure inputs
of no more than the equivalent of about 5-6 tonnes per ha per year (equivalent 30-36
kg on N) appear be suitable for the maintenance of species-rich neutral hay
meadows in both Wales and Cumbria".

4.6 Existing Welsh Government targets for stemming the loss of Biodiversity
Action Plan priority grassland habitats are likely to be compromised by the use of
options 15B & 15D if these are deployed on semi-natural grasslands. The
application of inorganic fertiliser to semi-natural grassland involves making an
exception to the Glastir Whole Farm Code and appears to be contrary to the
requirements of the EIA (Uncultivated Land) Regulations and hence in breach of
cross compliance. Moreover it will be both difficult and costly to restore the
biodiversity value of semi-natural grasslands once damage has been done. CCW
has therefore recommended that Options 15B and 15D should only be permitted on
agriculturally improved grasslands (these comprise more than 90% of the lowland
grasslands in Wales). In addition, the maximum level of nitrogen permitted under the
AWE (100kg/ha per year) still appears to be above the current rates of application
on the less intensively managed improved grasslands in Wales'?. As a result, this
part of the AWE appears to be generating very limited environmental gain, whilst
placing at risk some significant areas of wildlife habitat.

4.7. Changing the points limits applied to the various options as a result of the
Review should have led to some benefits in the uplands. CCW provided evidence
showing that the pre-dominance of habitat land in these situations meant that many
farmers were left with a choice of very few AWE options when attempting to construct
an application. The Welsh Government has now implemented the Review in such a
way that farmers can enter the scheme through obtaining up to 90% of their points
from a single habitat option, but a minimum of three AWE options is still normally a
requirement.

4.8. Whilst supportive of the principle that farmers should be obliged to choose at
least some the environmentally more beneficial options alongside those that may be
rather less demanding, CCW feels that farmers should now be allowed to enter the
scheme with only one habitat option provided they have enough land to meet the
threshold score. Such a move would further reduce one of the remaining barriers to
entry whilst at the same time helping to meet biodiversity, water quality and climate
change objectives.

1% Smith, R.S. (1993) Effects of fertiliser on plant species composition and conservation interest of UK grassland.

" Kirkham, F. W., Tallowin, J. R. B., Sanderson, R. A., Bhogal, A., Chambers, B. J., Stevens, D. P. 2008. The impact of organic
and inorganic fertilizers and lime on the species-richness and plant functional characteristics of hay meadow communities.
Biological Conservation 141, 1411-1427.

12 e . . )
http://www.defra.gov.uk/statistics/files/defra-stats-foodfarm-environ-fertiliserpractice-2010.pdf

Tudalen g pecyn 22



4.9. At the other end of the scale, the current requirement for no less than three
options means that farmers can now qualify for the AWE through doing little more
than field boundary management. As happened elsewhere in the UK, this approach
risks compromising the capacity of the scheme to deliver against the full range of
environmental objectives. CCW therefore recommends the use of the so-called “split
list” approach under which applicants are obliged to choose at least some options
from group A (field boundaries) and at least some options from within group B (other
habitats, water quality etc). In order to achieve consistency with the point made in
paragraph 4.7 above, an exception could be made where all of the points came from
within Group B.

4.10. The Review Group also made a recommendation on simplifying the Regional
Packages. Such packages result in an additional 10% being added to the points
available wherever the relevant options can provide a particular environmental
benefit in the geographical area concerned. The current rules now require 75% of the
points to be obtained from the three groups of management options listed in the
relevant Regional Package with a minimum of 15% of the points derived from each of
the three groups.

4.11. Despite the changes that have been made as a result of the Review, the
Regional packages still add a significant level of complexity to the application packs.
Detailed explanations of the packages currently occupy no less than sixteen pages.
CCW supports the use of Regional Packages, but feels that they could be delivered
in @ much more inspiring way whilst at the same time significantly reducing the
volume of paperwork sent to each applicant.

4.12. Since all of the maps sent to individual applicants are personalised by RPD, it
should be possible to provide a personalised Regional Package at the same time. In
other words, a farmer in Swansea or Anglesey would receive details of the relevant
Regional package as a separate insert within the application pack. The insert would
ideally illustrated with some photographs and key facts in order to encourage more
engagement with the idea of taking up particular options in order to safeguard
particular species. There would then be no need to provide details of the other fifteen
packages available across Wales.

5. Implementation of Recommendations from the ‘Working Smarter’ report.

5.1.  The recent report by Gareth Williams' contained seventy four separate
recommendations. In terms of Glastir, the most significant recommendations would
appear to be those dealing with:

e communication of information on sources of support for the agricultural
industry (R1);

e increasing the scale of the Farm Liaison Service and make use of experience
available within external agencies (R2);

e using the Welsh Government website to clarify the meaning of a wide range of
acronyms and technical terms such as sustainability and biodiversity (R7);

e ensuring that the development of on-line systems for all CAP schemes
involves interested parties via the On-line Systems Stakeholder Group (R11).

13 Working Smarter. A report of recommendations to the Welsh Government on better regulation in farming.
Gareth J. Willaims, December 2011.

Tudalen/ypecyn 23



5.2. Inline with Recommendation 48 (providing robust examples to demonstrate
that good environmental practice is fully compatible with food production while
enhancing business performance and profitability), CCW and its sister agencies have
recently commissioned ADAS to identify the main characteristics of sustainable
intensification in a UK context. This will involve developing twenty quantified farm
level case studies. Each of these will include an assessment of the impacts of
adopting different approaches to increasing food production and the delivery of other
ecosystem services using range of indicators, including net production per unit area;
greenhouse gas emissions; water quality; landscape and biodiversity. The case
studies will then be used to stimulate further debate within a series of farmer focus
groups before the final report is made available in the early autumn of 2012.

6. Addressing Barriers to Entry

6.1. The current requirement to obtain points from at least three AWE options
designed to ensure that a reasonable level of uptake is maintained across the full
range of measures available. CCW supports this approach which is designed to
avoid the kinds of problems that have arisen elsewhere within the UK. Nevertheless,
the chosen approach can disadvantage those farmers with large areas of semi-
natural upland habitat. CCW suggests that such farmers should be able to obtain all
of their points from just one habitat option provided they have enough land to meet
the threshold score.

6.2. As previously described, there are several other more significant barriers to
entry. Some of these, such as the application process, scheme literature and
approach to on-farm record keeping are more or less directly under Welsh
Government control. Some issues, such as the proposed greening of Pillar 1 of the
CAP, can only be dealt with through the Welsh Government’s involvement in ongoing
European negotiations. Increases in livestock prices (alongside the parallel increase
in the costs of inputs) are also likely to deter some applicants, but amending payment
rates is a complex and lengthy process which is explored in more detail within
section 8.

7. Flexibility between the funding of different elements of the scheme

7.1. The allocation of funding within Glastir is largely dictated by the number of
applicants for the AWE and the CLE as well as the size of the farms involved. The
number of signed AWE and CLE contracts then provides the backdrop against which
individual TE farms are selected. Sufficient funds are also required to cover the
woodland creation scheme, the woodland management scheme and Agricultural
Carbon Reduction and Efficiency Scheme (ACRES).

7.2.  Some 420 farms have now been selected for a visit under the TE including at
least 70 commons. This part of the scheme is still in its infancy and CCW
understands that about 30 visits have so far taken place. The TE is critical to
securing Welsh Government and EC targets in terms of addressing biodiversity,
water management and climate change. As a result it is essential to ensure that
sufficient contract managers are in place to deliver this part of the scheme. Further
work will be necessary to establish the amount of staff time required to prepare the
sorts of contract which are necessary.

Tudalen y1pegyn 24



7.3. CCW supported the introduction of ACRES, commenting on the benefits to
both the agricultural industry and wider society of enabling farmers to reduce the
carbon footprint of their individual businesses. Ensuring that farmers sign an AWE
contract prior to entering ACRES allows for capital grants to be made available to
Glastir entry-level participants, but simultaneous inspections under both parts of the
scheme will still be necessary.

7.4. Since ACRES is largely directed at more intensive farms, CCW wishes to
ensure that this part of Glastir is used to promote sustainable intensification in the
sense that environmental gains should take place alongside any increase in
production. CCW also believes that the concept of sustainable intensification needs
to be developed in the context of Sustaining a Living Wales. For example, given
global population and resource use trends, it is inevitable that more will need to be
produced from each acre of land in future. Agricultural production is only one part of
the equation, however, since timber growing, sequestering carbon, managing water,
addressing the loss of biodiversity, enhancing cultural landscapes and providing
recreational opportunities also make a significant contribution. In other words, the
concept of sustainable intensification encompasses the full range of possible
ecosystem services capable of being delivered through better management.

7.5. The Welsh Government has recently floated the possibility of introducing a
National Envelope scheme in order to support those sectors that might lose out
under the forthcoming CAP reforms and the resulting shift to area payments. In the
event that the Welsh Government decides to provide further support to the intensive
beef and dairy sectors, CCW believes this should be conditional on such farmers
taking further steps to promote sustainable intensification through reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, enhancing water quality and promoting animal health.
Linking any National Envelope to participation in the AWE and ACRES is likely to
impact on the balance between the different elements of Glastir.

8. Costing the different options available under the AWE & TE

8.1. CCW has had no direct involvement in the calculation of the payment rates
now being used within Glastir, although our agricultural advice team previously
carried out this role in relation to both Tir Cymen and Tir Gofal. CCW'’s land agency
team continues to negotiate the payments being made under individual management
agreements on SSSis.

8.2. Agri-environment payment rates are calculated according to the provisions set
out in Article 39 of the EC Rural Development Regulation and are required to cover
the “additional costs and income foregone” resulting from the relevant commitment.
Where necessary, the payments may also cover “transaction costs” (in previous
versions of the RDR these were described as incentive payments and set at a
maximum of 20% of the income foregone + costs combined).

8.3. The calculation of individual payment levels for each management option
within a nationally available scheme involves taking into account a wide variety of
farm types and farming situations. In deciding whether or not to apply, farmers will
also be influenced by the overall effect of “bundling together” a whole raft of

Tudalen/ypecyn 25



individual payment rates within a particular contract. Consideration also needs to be
given to changes in gross margin (the difference between agricultural returns and
costs for particular enterprises) over time. Frequent reviews of payment rates are
problematic, however, since all such exercises are very resource intensive. In
addition, all changes in payment rates have to be approved by the European
Commission.

8.4. A further issue to be considered when setting payment rates is the relationship
between the total cost of existing contracts and the size of the overall budget. In
general, increasing the level of payment for large numbers of relatively popular
individual options is likely to result in a reduction in the number of contracts that can
be signed. This is not to suggest, however, that all payments should be set at the
same percentage of income foregone plus costs — varying the percentage that is paid
(and adding an element of transaction costs where necessary) provides a useful tool
for increasing the uptake of less popular options. Applying such an approach to
Glastir will require more data on of the uptake rates for different options. This
information will be difficult to obtain at the present time bearing in mind that first
round contracts under the AWE are still being signed whilst negotiations for the first
round of TE contracts have only just started.

8.5. The Green Paper on Sustaining a Living Wales refers to “arguing for a more
economical[e/ rational regime for paying farmers for the delivery of environmental
outcomes”'*. Whilst the existing “income foregone plus costs” formula is effectively
non-negotiable (it is enshrined in the existing WTO agreement on the nature of the
Green Box which refers in turn to those subsidies deemed to have only a minimal
impact on production) the actual wording of the formula still leaves considerable
room for manoeuvre. In particular, recent work by CCW and the other UK countryside
agencies has demonstrated that scope exists for placing much more emphasis on
the costs of providing certain services (especially in the case of uneconomic farming
systems)'®. As already mentioned, however, increasing payment rates will have
particular implications when operating within a fixed budget.

9. Funding within Less Favoured Areas

9.1. The Welsh uplands are a major asset, helping to define the national
character. In particular, the Severely Disadvantaged Area (SDA) encompasses the
largest tracts of un-fragmented semi-natural habitat and landscapes in the country;
supplies water as well as contributing to flood management; stores significant
amounts of soil carbon (presenting both risks and opportunities in terms of tackling
climate change) and contributes to health and well-being through providing a huge
resource for outdoor recreation.

9.2. The SDA also supports large numbers of agricultural businesses actively
involved in managing semi-natural rough grazings as well as the associated in-bye

1 Sustaining a Living Wales: A Green Paper on new approach to natural resource management in Wales. Welsh Government
Consultation Document. January 2012. (Page 14).

15 Barnes A.P., Schwarz G., Keenleyside C., Thomson S., Waterhouse T., Polokova J., Stewart S., McCracken D. (2011)
Alternative payment approaches for non-economic farming systems delivering environmental public goods. Accessible at:
http://www.sac.ac.uk/ruralpolicycentre/publs/supporttoagriculture/alternativepaymentapproaches/

Tudalen y3pegyn 26




land. Land abandonment is becoming an issue in some places, although in other
locations the recent increase in lamb prices may result in a further phase of gradual
agricultural improvement.

9.3. As originally envisaged, a 20% uplift on the basic AWE payment of £28/ha
would have been available on all LFA land. This approach was not approved by the
European Commission, however, and the same payment rate now applies to all land
in Wales. The new standard payment of £34/ha ensures that all LFA farmers are
slightly better off than they would have been under the original system, but the LFA
differential has been removed along with the provision of a significant uplift outside of
the LFA.

9.4. In considering the acceptability of the existing AWE payment rate, a key issue
is whether it provides an adequate incentive for LFA farmers to apply for Glastir.
Agricultural returns have improved significantly since the launch of the scheme and
whilst the income foregone issue has been addressed within the lowlands, the same
is not true of the LFA. On the other hand, recent changes in the scoring system mean
that many LFA farms are now able to enter Glastir by selecting habitat options only.
The fact that such farms no longer need to make an up-front investment in capital
works is likely to make the existing payment rate appear more attractive, at least
some cases.

9.5. The difficulty with attempting to adjust Glastir payment rates over the next
eighteen months is that any such action will be extremely time consuming as well as
almost certainly being overtaken by events. The current CAP reform proposals will
introduce area payments under the SPS whilst at the same time LFA's will be
replaced by Areas of Natural Constraint (ANC). The new ANC's will involve the use of
new designation criteria (possibly resulting in a boundary that differs from that used
under the LFA system) whilst the Welsh Government may shortly have the capacity
to generate ANC support payments from within both Pillar 1 and Pillar 2. As a result,
it appears rather too early to adjust the AWE payment rate, bearing in mind that
decisions still have to be made regarding the best way of integrating the various
upland support measures likely to become available.

9.6. Inthe event that new Pillar 2 measures are required to mitigate the effect on
more extensive sectors of the forthcoming shift to area payments, one possibility
would be to examine whether a separate strand of the Glastir AWE could be
developed to provide additional support within the uplands/on land inside the
moorland line. Such an approach could be used to ensure that the provision of any
additional payment (payable in return for a specific set of commitments over and
above those available under in the AWE) is consistent with the ecosystems approach
set out within Sustaining a Living Wales. Since the same level of support per hectare
is unlikely to be required on very large farms as on smaller and medium sized units,
the payments could be scaled back according to farm size, as was the case with Tir
Mynydd.

9.7. Provision of an upland strand within Glastir could also assist some of the Tir
Gofal farms which may fail to qualify for the TE, but whose business model (and
environmental delivery) has been dependent on a combination of higher level agri-
environment payments coupled with Tir Mynydd.

Tudalen/ypecyn 27



10. Suggested Improvements to the Scheme

10.1. As a general principle, CCW believes that any major changes in scheme
design should be delayed until the start of the next WRDP. In the meantime, the
emphasis should be on improving the application process in order to maintain
momentum whilst at the same time adjusting some of the existing AWE options to
avoid perverse effects. Our specific recommendations are as follows:

(i). In order to safeguard the biodiversity value of existing semi-natural
grasslands, the use of AWE options 15B and 15D should only be permitted on
improved grasslands. Such grasslands still comprise more than 90% of the lowland
grasslands in Wales.

(if). The AWE application process could be made more flexible and user-
friendly. Initial targets were extremely ambitious and resulted in a process which
was designed to deal with large numbers of applications within a very short space of
time. The extension of Tir Mynydd, Tir Cynnal and Tir Gofal significantly reduced the
number of applications and this effect has been exacerbated by a number of other
factors including the increase in agricultural returns and ongoing uncertainties over
CAP reform. Smaller numbers of applications are now being received and these
could be dealt with by allowing farmers more leeway to amend the times at which
they attend meetings at Divisional Offices. The associated letters could also be
written in @ more encouraging tone. During the first round, the rate at which
applications were converted into contracts was disappointingly low. A more user
friendly process should help to improve on this situation during the second round.

(iii). Applicants should be allowed to enter the scheme using one habitat
management option only provided they have enough land to meet the
threshold score. Such an approach would further reduce the barriers to entry now
facing upland farms. Use of the so-called “split list” approach under which applicants
are obliged to choose at least some options from group A (field boundaries) and at
least some options from within group B (other habitats, water quality etc) would
enhance the capacity of the scheme to deliver against more demanding
environmental targets regarding the management of habitats and water. In order to
achieve consistency, exceptions could be made where all of the points were obtained
from within Group B.

(iv). All applicants should be provided with personalised Regional Packages in
the form of a separate insert within the application pack. Individual inserts should
be illustrated with photographs and key facts in order to encourage more
engagement with the idea of taking up suites of particular options in order to
safeguard locally significant species. There would then be no need to provide details
of the other packages available across Wales.

(v). Further improvements to the Technical Guidance are necessary. For
instance, the use of option 42B (Hedgerow restoration without fencing) is plainly not
advisable where the adjacent fields are grazed by livestock. CCW understands that
the requirement to exclude stock has now been inserted into all contracts containing
option 42B, but this issue will also be addressed within the next edition of the
Technical Guidance Booklets. Likewise, the use of coppicing as a hedgerow
restoration technique should be excluded within areas known to support breeding
dormouse populations.

(vi). All applicants should be provided with more guidance on the selection of

suitable AWE options. For example, the use of reduced inputs on improved

grassland has the capacity to deliver significant environmental benefits provided it is

applied in the right places (adjacent to existing habitats and watercourses) but can
Tudalen yspegyn 28



have a minimal impact if used in other locations. Similarly, there are opportunities to
integrate the use of the AWE and the woodland creation scheme, but the nature of
the application pack tends to encourage an approach based primarily on meeting
scheme entry requirements rather than delivering maximum environmental benefits
in line with existing farming systems. More use should be made of Farming Connect
and the Farm Advisory service as well as FWAG and the voluntary sector. Provision
of a specific payment to cover the provision of advice to individual applicants could
also prove helpful.

(vii). The assessment of applications under the Glastir Woodland Creation
Scheme should continue to be carried out by trained and fully independent
officials so as to avoid potential conflicts of interest. Many landowners would
prefer to create new woodland on land of low productivity, much of which is semi-
natural habitat. Unfortunately this sometimes conflicts with the principle of
conserving priority habitats and so-called section 42 species®.

(viii). The Glastir scheme should provide a seamless treatment of woodland
incentives alongside those available for agriculture. For instance, some upland
acid grasslands submitted under AWE are potentially available for Glastir Woodland
Creation, but are likely to be “locked in” under AWE requirement to maintain semi-
natural habitats under the Whole Farm Code. In addition, non-farming applicants to
the Glastir woodland schemes tend to experience more difficulty in dealing with the
administrative processes which are designed primarily for agricultural schemes.

(ix). Providing worked examples of AWE and TE contracts via the Welsh
Government website/within the application packs would help to explain what
Glastir is designed to achieve. In the case of the AWE, examples applicable to a
range of different farm types could be used to demonstrate how best to apply the
various options in ways that meet agricultural needs whilst at the same time
delivering maximum environmental benefits. In the case of the TE, it is important to
illustrate how the selection process operates and how the contracts themselves will
be constructed. A range of part and whole farm contracts could be used to show how
the TE prescriptions are intended operate alongside the AWE, the woodland
schemes and ACRES.

(x). All farmers with a first round AWE contracts must be in a position to
promote positive messages. Such farmers have the capacity to promote the
benefits arising from the scheme as well as reducing the risk that misconceptions will
become established. Existing scheme participants could provide guidance to those
still considering whether of not to submit an application as well as advising new
contract holders. Further consideration should be given to establishing a formal
system of mentoring (under which lead farmers in a particular area could be paid for
providing advice and guidance to others) as well as establishing a regular
programme of on-farm visits involving existing scheme participants.

(xi). Every participant should receive at least one “care and maintenance visit”
to ensure that they have fully understood all of the prescriptions and are aware
of what the contract is designed to achieve. Formal compliance inspections by the
Rural Inspectorate for Wales (RIW) are only likely to cover some 5% of participants.
Failure to invest in the necessary levels of aftercare will be a false economy.

16 As listed in section 42 of Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (Habitats & Species of Principal Importance

for Conserving Biodiversity in Wales)
Tudales/ypecyn 29



(xii). The application of the Reduced Entry Level (REL) threshold should
provide a stepping stone for more intensively managed farms to move into the
full AWE scheme. Such adjustments could easily be made during the first five years
of the contract without the need for extra staff resources. All of the REL farms should
remain in the pool of those deemed to be eligible for a visit by a TE contract
manager. In the event that such farms are indeed selected for the TE, the offer of a
higher level contract would be dependent on the farmer agreeing to uprate the AWE
contract. Such an approach would help to ensure that where the TE is being used to
address issues requiring a co-operative approach (such as enhancing water quality
within a particular catchment) all of the relevant farms are enabled to adopt the
necessary measures.

(xiii). It is essential to ensure that sufficient contract managers are in place to
deliver the TE. This part of the scheme is critical to securing Welsh Government and
EC targets in terms of addressing biodiversity, water management and climate
change.

(xiv). Permitting TE participants to enter the AWE/CLE at the same time as
signing their TE contracts could lead to significant administrative savings. As
used in the Countryside Stewardship scheme in England, such an approach would
simplify the process of constructing the TE contracts, ensuring that the measures
applied under different parts of Glastir were fully integrated. From a CCW
perspective, the process of issuing SSSI consents would be substantially improved.
Firstly, one consent will be required rather than two. Secondly, the consents
themselves would become much easier to issue. For instance, under the current
system it is difficult to consent to AWE/CLE proposals where these involve reducing
stocking levels to rates that are too low to maintain an SSSI in its existing condition.
Setting a more suitable stocking rate under the TE would immediately address the
problem.

(xv). Existing Tir Gofal farms should be prioritised for entry into the TE. Some
3000 whole farm agri-environment contracts will expire on 31 December 2013. The
treatment of these farms will be critical to the success of the next Wales RDP. For
instance, some 45,400ha of terrestrial upland SSSI are covered by CCW section 15
agreements, but 51,500 ha are currently within Tir Gofal. These agreements account
for a substantial proportion of the land now deemed to be in “unfavourable but
recovering” condition. Failure to secure the investment already made will lead to a
sharp decline in performance against previously agreed SSSI condition targets”.

(xvi). The existing team of trained facilitators should be retained in order to
take forward the co-operative elements of Glastir. The existing CLE scheme
represents a notable success and the current draft of the new Rural Development
Regulation (RDR) provides an opportunity to increase payment rates by up to 10%
within those agri-environment contracts incorporating a co-operative approach. As
the number of CLE applications starts to decline, the existing team of Common Land
Development Officers could have a significant role to play in helping to deliver the
type of multi-farm contracts necessary to deal with a range of other issues such as
water quality and the management of wetlands.

v Environment Strategy for Wales (2006). Welsh Government.

Tudalen yrpegyn 30



(xvii). Further consideration could be given to the possibility of examining
whether a separate strand of the Glastir AWE could be to be developed in order
to address the needs of the uplands. A range of approaches under the RDR may
be required to mitigate the effect on more extensive sectors of the forthcoming shift
to area payments under Pillar 1. As with the Upland Entry Level Scheme in England,
such an approach could be used to ensure that the provision of additional support (
which would be be provided in return for a specific set of commitments over and
above those currently available under the AWE) is consistent with the ecosystems
approach set out within Sustaining a Living Wales.

(xviii). The monitoring of environmental outcomes plays a vital part in
measuring whether or not scheme objectives are being achieved. Such work
often appears less critical at the start of any new scheme, but both prescriptions and
procedures need to be continuously reviewed to ensure that public money is being
well spent. Building the costs of outcome monitoring into the overall programme
budget should help to avoid the risk that such work is treated as a “bolt-on” extra
rather than being dealt with as an integral part of the scheme.

11. Concluding Remarks

11.1. The proposed greening of Pillar 1 represents a significant change in the
architecture of the CAP. Subject to further negotiations at EU level it is possible that
greening could be used to encourage farmers to join agri-environment schemes
(AES) by ensuring that they are exempt from the new requirements in the same way
as organic farmers.

11.2. Whilst CCW recognises the desirability of minimising the number of changes
to Glastir, the proposed EU requirement that the Pillar 1 greening measures should
“go beyond cross compliance” means that some further adjustments to the AWE are
likely to be necessary. For instance, the modification or the removal of options 15B
and 15D would seem to make it more likely that the European Commission will agree
with the proposition that all participants in Glastir should be exempt from P1 greening
requirements.

11.3. CCW previously welcomed the use of a transition period to ensure that those
currently participating in existing agri-environment schemes could continue with their
existing commitments up until the end of the current WRDP. Tir Gofal agreements
cover some 18% of the Welsh agricultural area, whilst making a significant
contribution to the achievement of the SSSI condition targets.

11.4. The expiry of some 6000 existing agri-environment contracts on 31%
December 2013 means that substantial numbers of farmers are then likely apply to
Glastir. Bringing such farms into the AWE should be relatively simple, but ensuring
entry into the TE is likely to require a substantial project officer resource if long
queues are to be avoided. An alternative approach would involve putting more
emphasis on the role of the farmer and/or private agents in working up detailed
management proposals.

11.5. Some 85% of the land area of Wales is devoted to agriculture and forestry and
the recent Green Paper on Sustaining a Living Wales rightly acknowledged the
importance of these land uses within the Welsh economy. The Glastir scheme
attempts to take an ecosystem services approach to the provision of support to the

Tudaleg/ypecyn 31



farming and forestry sectors, but has not been particularly well integrated into the
ongoing discussions on natural resources as promoted by the Green Paper.
Sustainable land management plays a key role in delivering the ecosystem approach
and providing a clear role within the delivery of Glastir would improve the capacity of
the new Single Body to achieve its objectives.

11.6. In responding to the recent Welsh Government consultation on Natural
Resources Wales'®, CCW stated that “Glastir should have longer-term objectives
than its predecessor schemes if it is to enable sustainable land management.
Experience of previous agri-environment schemes shows that Glastir could win
greater support from farmers and other stakeholders if it was operated at arms-length
from Government. A duty to operate Glastir should be transferred to the new Body at
an appropriate date in the near future”.

Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru

Countryside Council for Wales
May 2012

'8 Copy available on request.

Tudalen ypegyn 32



=~ Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru

A
= Countryside Council for Wales

Countryside Council for Wales

PWYLLGOR AMGYLCHEDD A CHYNALIADWYEDD CYNULLIAD
CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU

YMCHWILIAD | GYNLLUN RHEOLI TIR GLASTIR

CYFLWYNIAD GAN GYNGOR CEFN GWLAD CYMRU

Crynodeb

Mae CCGC yn croesawu'r cyfle hwn i gyflwyno tystiolaeth i'r Pwyllgor. Mae gennym
gryn dipyn o brofiad o ran llunio a chyflwyno cynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd. Mae'r
materion yr hoffem eu pwysleisio fel a ganlyn:

Mae CCGC yn croesawu'r cyfle hwn i gyflwyno tystiolaeth i'r Pwyllgor. Mae gennym
gryn dipyn o brofiad o ran llunio a chyflwyno cynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd. Mae'r
materion yr hoffem eu pwysleisio fel a ganlyn:

(). Mae CCGC yn cefnogi'n gryf yr athroniaeth sy'n sail i Glastir, yn enwedig
y gydnabyddiaeth y gall ffordd integredig o gyflwyno cynlluniau rheoli tir
chwarae rhan bwysig yn y gwaith o reoli amrywiaeth eang o nwyddau a
gwasanaethau ecosystem.

(ii). Ochr yn ochr a nifer o asiantaethau a chyrff anllywodraethol eraill, mae
CCGC wedi rhoi cryn ymdrech i ystyried y ffordd y mae Glastir wedi'i lunio ac
wedi'i gyflwyno. Byddwn yn parhau i chwarae ein rhan yn ystod y cyfnod yn
arwain at greu'r corff newydd a fydd yn gyfrifol am reoli adnoddau naturiol
Cymru.

(iii). Mae safleoedd Natura 2000 sydd o bwys rhyngwladol a SoDdGAau sydd
o bwys cenedlaethol yn rhan amlwg o gontractau Elfen Cymru Gyfan (AWE) ac
Elfen Tir Comin (CLE) yn ogystal a'r rhestr o ffermydd a ddewiswyd ar gyfer yr
Elfen wedi'i Thargedu. Mae CCGC yn croesawu réol y cynllun newydd i reoli
safleoedd dynodedig yn briodol ac mae'n anelu at sicrhau bod pob caniatad
SoDdGA angenrheidiol ar waith.

Sponsored by
Welsh Government

7

Gofalu am natur Cymru - ar y tir ac yn y mér eCaring for our natural heritage - on land and in the sea

Noddir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

Prif Swyddfa/Headquarters .
MAES-Y-FFYNNON, PENRHOSGARNEDD, BANGOR LL57 2DW FFON/TEL; FFON/TEL: 01248 385500; FFACS/FAX:
01248 355782

http://www.ccgc.gov.uk

Tudalery yopecyn 33



(iv). Er bod y gyfradd ar gyfer trosi ceisiadau’'n gontractau o dan y cylch
cyntaf wedi bod yn achos pryder, a hynny'n gwbl ddilys, mae contractau
cychwynnol wedi cael eu llofnodi ar adeg pan fo'r rhan fwyaf o gontractau
amaeth-amgylchedd a lofnodwyd o'r blaen yn dal yn weithredol ac yng nghyd-
destun enillion amaethyddol uwch ac ansicrwydd ynglyn & diwygio'r PAC.
Dengys profiad o gynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd fod llawer o ffermwyr yn aros
i weld a all "mabwysiadwyr cynnar" gyfuno gofynion y cynllun a gofynion
rhedeg busnes ffermio llwyddiannus. O ran hynny, mae'r 1700 o ffermwyr sydd
eisoes a chontractau AWE yn debygol o gael rhan allweddol i'w chwarae dros
yr ychydig flynyddoedd nesaf.

(v). Bydd yn hollbwysig cynnal digon o ymweliadau "gofal a chynnal”. Mae
angen y rhain er mwyn sicrhau bod pob un sy'n cymryd rhan yn Glastir yn
llawn ddeall ei ymrwymiadau o dan y cynllun newydd. Dylid sefydlu rhaglen
fentora i sicrhau bod y rhai sy'n dal contractau yn gallu rhoi cyngor i‘r rhai sy'n
gwneud cais neu sydd newydd lofnodi contract.

(vi). Bydd unrhyw newidiadau mawr eraill i'r cynllun presennol cyn lansio
CDGC newydd yn debygol o arwain at golli momentwm. Erbyn hyn Glastir yw'r
unig adnodd o bwys sydd ar gael i fynd i'r afael &'r dirywiad parhaus mewn
bioamrywiaeth, cyflawni targedau'r Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith DWr a sicrhau y
gall ffermwyr chwarae rhan ganolog yn y gwaith o fynd i'r afael & newid yn yr
hinsawdd.

(viii). Mae angen gwneud rhagor o waith i ganfod pam bod cynifer o'r
ymgeiswyr cychwynnol wedi methu a llofnodi contractau AWE, ond cred CCGC
y dylai'r pwyslais dros y 18 mis nesaf fod ar wella'r prosesau o gyflwyno
ceisiadau Glastir a'u troi'n gontractau, sefydlu system gyflawni'r Elfen Wedi'i
Thargedu a dileu unrhyw gymhellion i greu canlyniadau amgylcheddol croes o
dan Elfen Cymru Gyfan.

(ix). Mae CCGC wedi gwneud 18 o argymbhellion i wella'r ffordd y rhoddir
Glastir ar waith (gweler adran 10). Bwriedir i'r rhan fwyaf wella'r broses o roi'r
cynllun ar waith, ond er mwyn diogelu gwerth bioamrywiaeth y cynefinoedd
lled-naturiol presennol, credwn yn gryf mai dim ond ar laswelltiroedd wedi'u
gwella y dylid caniatau defnyddio opsiwn 15B ac 15D AWE.

(x). Er gwaethaf y gwelliannau a wnaed eisoes, mae'r pecynnau Rhanbarthol
yn dal i wneud y pecynnau ymgeisio dipyn yn fwy cymhleth. Mae CCGC yn
cefnogi defnyddio pecynnau o'r fath, ond mae o'r farn y gallent gael eu darparu
mewn ffordd lawer mwy ysbrydoledig. Ar yr un pryd gellid lleihau gryn dipyn ar
faint o waith papur a anfonir at bob ymgeisydd.

(xi). Bwriedir i'r gofyniad cyfredol i gael pwyntiau o dan o leiaf dri opsiwn
AWE sicrhau bod niferoedd rhesymol yn ymgymryd a'r holl amodau a gynigir.
Mae CCGC yn cefnogi hyn mewn egwyddor, ond mae o'r farn y gall roi
ffermwyr sydd ag arwynebedd mawr o gynefin ucheldir lled-naturiol o dan
anfantais. Dylai fod modd i ffermwyr o'r fath gael ei holl bwyntiau o un opsiwn
cynefin yn unig ar yr amod bod ganddynt ddigon o dir.

(xii). Mae tua 420 o ffermydd bellach wedi cael eu dewis i gael ymweliad o dan
yr Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu gan gynnwys o leiaf 70 o diroedd comin. Bydd yn

Tudalen y pecyn 34



hanfodol sicrhau bod digon o reolwyr contract ar waith i gyflawni'r rhan hon o'r
cynllun, o gofio mai megis cychwyn y mae'r broses weithredu.

(xiii). Drwy ganiatau i'r rhai sy'n cymryd rhan yn yr Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu
ymuno ag AWE/CLE ar yr un pryd a llofnodi contract Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu
gellid arbed costau gweinyddol sylweddol. Byddai hynny yn symleiddio'r
broses o baratoi contractau Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu a hefyd yn sicrhau bod y
mesurau a gyflwynir o dan wahanol rannau o Glastir yn gwbl integredig.

(xiv). Daw'r contractau Tir Gofal a Tir Cynnal sy'n weddill i ben ar 31*" Rhagfyr
2013, sy'n peri'r risg y bydd niferoedd is yn cymryd rhan mewn cynlluniau
amaeth-amgylchedd yn ystod blynydoedd cynnar Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig
Cymru nag a welir ar hyn o bryd. Bydd methiant i sicrhau buddsoddiadau sydd
eisoes wedi'u gwneud yn arwain at ddirywiad sydyn mewn perfformiad yn
erbyn y targedau y cytunwyd arnynt o'r blaen ynglyn a chyflwr SoDdGAau.

1. Cyflwyniad

1.1 Mae Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru yn hyrwyddo amgylchedd a thirweddau
Cymru a dyfroedd ei glannau fel ffynonellau o gyfoeth naturiol a diwylliannol, fel sail i
weithgarwch economaidd a chymdeithasol ac fel man ar gyfer hamdden a chyfleoedd
dysgu. Ein nod yw gwneud yr amgylchedd yn rhan werthfawr o fywydau pawb yng
Nghymru.

1.2.  Mae tir amaethyddol a choetir yn cyfrif am tua 90% o arwynebedd Cymru.
Mae amaeth a choedwigaeth yn effeithio'n sylweddol ar allu CCGC i gyflawni ei
swyddogaethau craidd mewn perthynas a bioamrywiaeth, tirwedd a mynediad y
cyhoedd i gefn gwlad. Mae CCGC yn cefnogi'n gryf yr athroniaeth sy'n sail i Glastir,
yn enwedig y gydnabyddiaeth y gall ffordd integredig o lunio a chyflwyno cynlluniau
rheoli tir chwarae rhan bwysig yn y gwaith o reoli amrywiaeth eang o nwyddau a
gwasanaethau ecosystem.

1.3.  Ar hyn o bryd mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymrwymedig i barhau i ddyrannu
tua 70% o adnoddau Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig Cymru ar gyfer rheoli tir yn ystod y
cyfnod 2014-2020". Yn y cyd-destun hwn, mae CCGC yn argymell y dylai'r Cynllun
newydd barhau i ganolbwyntio ar fesurau sydd a'r nod o wrth-droi achosion o golli
bioamrywiaeth; gwella'r ffordd y rheolir dwr; mynd i'r afael & newid yn yr hinsawdd;
gwarchod tirweddau diwylliannol a gwella mynediad y cyhoedd i gefn gwlad yn unol a
thargedau presennol Llywodraeth Cymru a'r UE 234,

1.4. Mae CCGC yn cefnogi'r egwyddorion a fu'n sail i lunio darpariaeth cynllun
amaeth-amgylchedd Glastir gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Er bod yr amodau sydd ar gael
o dan yr Elfen Cymru Gyfan (AWE) a'r Elfen Tir Comin (CLE) yn gofyn am lai o
ymrwymiad na'r cynlluniau a ragflaenodd Glastir megis Tir Gofal, dylai cymryd rhan
yn y rhannau hyn o Glastir ddal i helpu i sicrhau gwelliannau yng nghyflwr safleoedd

! Cynnal Cymru Fyw: Papur Gwyrdd ar ddull newydd o reoli adnoddau naturiol Cymru. Dogfen Ymgynghori Llywodraeth Cymru.
lonawr 2012. (tudalen 15)

2 cynnal Cymru Fyw: Papur Gwyrdd ar ddull newydd o reoli adnoddau naturiol Cymru. Dogfen Ymgynghori Llywodraeth Cymru.
lonawr 2012 (tudalennau 7-8)

® Environment Strategy for Wales (2006). Welsh Government.

* The European Environment — State and Outlook 2010. Asiantaeth yr Amgylchedd Ewrop. Ar gael yn:

http://www.eea.europa.eu/soer/synthesis/synthesis/chapterl.xhtml
® Strategaeth Bioamrywiaeth yr UE. Ar gael yn:
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/nature/biodiversity/comm2006/pdf/2020/1 EN_ACT partl v7[1].pdf

Tudaleyy yopecyn 35



http://www.eea.europa.eu/soer

dynodedig a chyflwr cefn gwlad yn fwy cyffredinol. Yna mae'r elfen fwy ymestynnol,
sef yr Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu, yn canolbwyntio adnoddau CDGC ar y meysydd hynny
lle mae angen gweithredu ar frys i gyflawni targedau Llywodraeth Cymru a'r UE o ran
bioamrywiaeth, dwr a newid yn yr hinsawdd. Ymddengys y byddai mwy o bwyslais ar
dirwedd a mynediad y cyhoedd hefyd yn briodol, o gofio rdl twristiaeth yn economi
Cymru.

2. Rol CCGC o ran Glastir

2.1.  Ynystody cyfnod 2009-10 cynghori ynghylch sut y dylid llunio'r opsiynau
rheoli i'w defnyddio o fewn AWE, CLE a'r Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu oedd prif gyfraniad
CCGC. Bu staff gwyddonol a chynghorol CCGC hefyd yn gweithio'n agos gydag
Asiantaeth yr Amgylchedd Cymru a'r sector gwirfoddol i helpu'r adran Materion
Gwledig i baratoi'r mapiau GIS a ddefnyddiwyd i ddewis ffermydd i gymryd rhan yn yr
Elfen Wedi'u Targedu.

2.2. Dros y deunaw mis diwethaf, mae r6l CCGC wedi newid ac mae bellach yn
cynnwys llawer mwy o bwyslais ar gynghori ar gyflwyno'r cynllun fel y mae'n effeithio
ar safleoedd dynodedig. Mae'n ofynnol ymgynghori & CCGC ynglyn & phob cais o
dan Glastir sy'n cynnwys gosod opsiynau rheoli ar Safleoedd o Ddiddordeb
Gwyddonol Arbennig (SoDdGA) cyn y gellir llunio contract®. Y nod yw dileu'r risg y
bydd ffermwr yn llofnodi contract Glastir sy'n effeithio ar SoDdGA ac wedyn
ddarganfod na ellir rhoi'r contract ar waith am na all CCGC roi caniatad ar gyfer yr
opsiwn/opsiynau rheoli perthnasol.

2.3. Gwyddys bod o leiaf 284 o geisiadau AWE a ddaeth i law yn ystod y cylch
cyntaf yn cynnwys SoDdGAau. Mae CCGC wedi prosesu 204 o achosion erbyn hyn,
ond mae angen ailystyried 26 o'r rhain oherwydd newidiadau sydd wedi digwydd ers
i'r cais cychwynnol gael ei gyflwyno. Ar yr amod y bydd yr Is-adran Taliadau Gwledig
yn rhoi'r holl wybodaeth angenrheidiol, y gobaith yw y bydd modd rhoi pob caniatad
sy'n ymwneud a'r AWE sydd eto i'w penderfynu o'r cylch cyntaf erbyn canol mis Mai
2012.

2.4. Mae 113 o SoDdGAau eraill wedi'u cwmpasu'n gyfan gwbl neu'n rhannol gan
y cylch cyntaf o gontractau CLE a gwyddys bod tua 250 o achosion o Elfen Wedi'i
Thargedu hefyd yn effeithio ar SoDdGAau. Er bod rél mor arwyddocaol yn y gwaith o
reoli SoDdGAau i'w chroesawu'n fawr, mae'r gwaith o brosesu caniatadau
angenrheidiol hefyd yn gosod gofynion sylweddol ar staff rhanbarthol CCGC. Mae
hyn yn amlwg iawn yn Ardaloedd CCGC lle ceir y nifer fwyaf o achosion Glastir sy'n
ymwneud & SoDdGAau. Mae hefyd yn amlwg iawn bod llawer o ffrydiau gwaith
Glastir (AWE, Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu, CLE, creu coetir a phlannu coetir) yn
gorgyffwrdd o ran amseriad y gwaith sydd ei angen gan CCGC. Mae'r gwaith hwn
bellach yn cynnwys rhoi cyngor i ffermwyr, Cymdeithasau Pori a Swyddogion
Datblygu Tiroedd Comin cyn i geisiadau gael eu gwneud; cyd-drafod caniatadau
SoDdGAau ar gyfer yr AWE, CLE a'r Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu; cyngor ar gynigion
ynglyn & phlannu coetir a rheoli coetir ynghyd & chyswillt rheolaidd & nifer fawr o staff
o'r Adran Materion Gwledig.

2.5. Gyda staff o bob un o Ranbarthau CCGC bellach yn neilltuo cryn dipyn o
adnoddau ar gyfer Glastir, mae dau reolwr prosesu rhan-amser wedi cael eu

by cyngor cyfreithiol yw na ellir dirprwyo pwerau CCGC o dan y Ddeddf Bywyd Gwyllt a Chefn Gwlad i Lywodraeth Cymru.

Tudalen v pecyn 36



penodi'n ddiweddar er mwyn rheoli llifau data a chydgysylltu'r gwaith o olrhain
caniatadau drwy'r sefydliad. Mae staff CCGC yn cydgysylltu &'r Is-adran Taliadau
Gwledig yn wythnosol mewn perthynas ag achosion unigol a'r broses gyffredinol o roi
caniatadau. Mae CCGC hefyd yn bwriadu adolygu ei brosesau mewnol sy'n
ymwneud a Glastir i weld a oes modd gwella'r rhain o safbwynt perchenogion
SoDdGAau a staff.

2.6. Erbod staff wedi bod yn gweithio'n ddiwyd i sicrhau y caiff caniatadau eu rhoi
ar gyfer unrhyw geisiadau o dan Glastir sy'n effeithio ar safleoedd statudol, eto i gyd
mae dyletswydd gyfreithiol ar CCGC i wrthod unrhyw gynigion a fydd yn cael effaith
andwyol ar nodweddion SoDdGA. Yn benodol, mae'r baich profi yn fwy yn achos
safleoedd o bwys rhyngwladol, lle mae cydymffurfiaeth & Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd y
CE yn golygu y dylid gwrthod unrhyw gynigion ar safle Natura 2000 oni ellir
cadarnhau nad oes risg o ganlyniadau andwyol.

2.7. Bu'r berthynas rhwng SoDdGAau a'r Elfen Tir Comin yn achosi problemau
mewn rhai achosion, er bod cwblhau 107 o gontractau Glastir o'r fath yn ystod cylch
cyntaf y cynllun yn llwyddiant nodedig. Mae bron 68,000 hectar o dir comin bellach o
dan reolaeth fwy cynaliadwy’ y mae o leiaf 23,880 hectar (35%) ohono yn rhan o 39
o SoDdGAau gwahanol.

2.8. Yn benodol, hoffai CCGC dalu teyrnged i waith y Swyddogion Datblygu
Tiroedd Comin. Mae profiad blaenorol o gynllun Tir Cymen a Tir Gofal wedi dangos
bod hwyluswyr yn chwarae rhan hanfodol i sicrhau y cyflwynir cynlluniau amaeth-
amgylchedd cydweithredol.

2.9. Lle mae cyflwr SoDdGA yn foddhaol a/neu lle mae parhad arferion pori
cyfredol yn annhebygol o effeithio'n andwyol arno, mae staff CCGC wedi bod yn
gofyn i Gymdeithasau Pori roi manylion eu lefelau stocio presennol fel sail i ganiatad
SoDdGA, a hynny oherwydd efallai y bydd y lefelau stocio mwyaf a ganiateir o dan yr
Elfen Tir Comin (ac sy'n gymwys drwy Gymru gyfan waeth beth fo'r amodau lleol) yn
rhy fawr mewn rhai achosion. Mewn sawl achos, fodd bynnag, mae'r Cymdeithasau
Pori perthnasol wedi bod yn anfodlon rhoi ffigurau o'r fath am eu bod yn ofni y gall
unrhyw ganiatadd SoDdGA sy'n deillio o hynny effeithio ar eu hawliadau SPS yn'y
dyfodol a/neu eu gallu i gynyddu lefelau pori ar 8l i unrhyw gontract o dan Glastir
ddod i ben.

2.10. Er mwyn lleddfu ofnau o'r fath, mae CCGC wedi rhoi datganiad ysgrifenedig i
Lywodraeth Cymru ynglyn a'r ffordd y trinnir Hysbysiadau o Ganiatad sydd wedi
mynd yn ddi-rym. Mae rhanddeiliaid perthnasol megis Fforwm Tiroedd Comin Cymru
hefyd wedi cael copi. Yn benodol, wrth i gontractau Glastir ddod i ben, bydd
Cymdeithasau Pori naill ai'n gallu parhau i bori yn unol &'r lefelau a ganiatawyd o dan
Glastir (ar yr amod nad yw hyn wedi achosi difrod i'r SODdGA) neu fel arfer yn gallu
dychwelyd i'r lefelau a'r patrwm o bori a oedd yn berthnasol ar yr adeg y cyflwynwyd
hysbysiad am SoDdGA am y tro cyntaf (mewn rhai achosion efallai y bydd hyn yn
gofyn am ganiatad arall gan y Corff Unigol newydd, yn dibynnu ar eiriad yr hysbysiad
unigol o SoDdGA).

’ Datganiad Gweinidogol Llywodraeth Cymru ar Glastir. 1af Chwefror 2012.

Tudalesy yopecyn 37



3. Cyflwyno'r Cynllun
Tir Amaethyddol

3.1.  Cyflwynwyd cyfanswm o0 2940 o geisiadau Glastir yn ystod cylch cyntaf Elfen
Cymru Gyfan. Cyrhaeddodd y rhan fwyaf o'r rhain yn ystod tri diwrnod olaf y cyfnod
ymgeisio. Roedd cynllun Tir Gofal hefyd wedi dechrau'n araf, gyda dim ond 1381 o
geisiadau yn ystod y cylch cyntaf ac 877 yn ystod yr ail gylch. Dengys profiad o
gynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd fod llawer o ffermwyr yn aros i weld a all
"mabwysiadwyr cynnar" gyfuno gofynion y cynllun & gofynion rhedeg busnes ffermio
llwyddiannus. Yn ystod cylch cyntaf ceisiadau Glastir, atgyfnerthwyd y duedd hon
ymhlith llawer o ffermwyr i fod yn bwyllog ofalus gan benderfyniad Llywodraeth
Cymru i ymestyn contractau presennol Tir Gofal a Tir Cynnal ochr yn ochr a chynllun
Tir Mynydd.

3.2.  Erbyn hyn mae cyfanswm o 1698 o gontractau AWE wedi cael eu dyfarnu o'r
cylch cyntaf ac mae'r rhain yn cwmpasu arwynebedd o 154,014 hectar. Er bod
cyfradd drosi 0 58% yn achos pryder, a hynny'n gwbl ddilys, mae'n werth nodi bod
tua 9% o hyd o arwynebedd tir amaethyddol Cymru bellach o dan gontract. At hynny,
llwyddwyd i gael y niferoedd hyn ar adeg pan fo'r rhan fwyaf o'r contractau amaeth-
amgylchedd a lofnodwyd eisoes yn dal i fod yn weithredol.

3.3. Mae angen ymchwilio eto i ganfod pam nad oedd cynifer o ymgeiswyr
cychwynnol AWE wedi methu & llofnodi contract. Mewn rhai achosion, mae'n bosibl
ei bod yn rhy anodd i'r rhai a oedd eisoes yn rhan o gynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd
gyrraedd y trothwy angenrheidiol o ran pwyntiau. Er gwaethaf y sicrwydd a roddwyd
gan Lywodraeth Cymru, mae'n debygol bod yr ansicrwydd ynglyn a'r diwygiadau
arfaethedig i'r PAC wedi peri i rai ymgeiswyr oedi cyn gwneud cais. Efallai fod eraill
wedi ystyried bod y cynnydd diweddar mewn enillion amaethyddol yn cynnig ffordd
amgen o greu busnes mwy diogel o gymharu a'r taliadau sydd ar gael o dan yr AWE.
Yn olaf, ymddengys fod natur y broses gan gynnwys yr holl wybodaeth a roddwyd yn
y pecynnau cais ynghyd a'r gofyniad i gadw dyddiaduron gweithgarwch a/neu stocio
wedi bod yn rhwystr i gyfran sylweddol o'r rhai a gyflwynodd gais.

3.4. Mae ail gylch yr AWE wedi dod i ben yn ddiweddar ac mae 700 o geisiadau
eraill wedi cael eu cyflwyno. Mae'r ffigur hwn yn is na'r disgwyl, yn enwedig o ystyried
i daliadau olaf Tir Mynydd gael eu gwneud ar ddechrau 2012. Ary llaw arall,
ymddengys fod cryn ddiddordeb yn yr Elfen Tir Comin gyda 50 o ddatganiadau o
ddiddordeb wedi'u cyflwyno. Mae'n debyg bod enillion amaethyddol cymharol uchel
ynghyd a'r posibilrwydd o ddiwygiadau pellach i'r PAC wedi peri i lawer o ddarpar
ymgeiswyr beidio & gwneud cais AWE. Mae'n bosibl bod natur y broses ymgeisio
wedi bod yn rhwystr i ffermwyr eraill gan gynnwys y gofyniad newydd i ddarparu map
anodedig fel rhan o bob cais.

3.5. Erybydd trydydd cylch o geisiadau yn cychwyn ar ddechrau 2013 yn fwy na
thebyg, ymddengys y bydd y gofyniad cyffredinol i bob contract gael ei lofnodi erbyn
12" lonawr yn y flwyddyn ddilynol yn codi rhai anawsterau. O dan y trefniadau
cyfredol, byddai angen i bob contract a baratoir yn ystod 2013 ddechrau ar 1% lonawr
2014 - erbyn hynny bwriedir i Gynllun Datblygu Gwledig newydd i Gymru (CDGC) fod
ar waith. Gobeithio yr ymdrinnir &'r mater hwn yn y Rheoliadau trosiannol a fydd yn
dod i'r golwg fel rhan o'r broses barhaus o ddiwygio'r PAC. Eto i gyd, er mwyn cadw

Tudalen g pecyn 38



momentwm o dan raglen Glastir, mae CCGC yn awyddus i sicrhau bod o leiaf un
cylch arall o geisiadau yn cael ei gynnal o dan y CDGC presennol.

3.6  Daw'r contractau Tir Gofal a Tir Cynnal sy'n weddill i ben ar 31*" Rhagfyr
2013, sy'n peri'r risg y bydd niferoedd is yn cymryd rhan mewn cynlluniau amaeth-
amgylchedd yn ystod blynydoedd cynnar Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig Cymru nag a
welir ar hyn o bryd. O ystyried hyn, cred CCGC y dylai fod pwyslais dros y 18 mis
nesaf ar wella'r broses o gyflwyno ceisiadau AWE a CLE a'u troi'n gontractau a hefyd
ar sefydlu system o gyflwyno'r Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu. Gallai unrhyw newidiadau
mawr i'r cynllun presennol cyn lansio'r CDGC newydd arwain at golli mwy o
fomentwm, yn enwedig gan ei bod yn debygol y bydd angen cyd-drafod unrhyw
amodau a/neu gyfraddau talu newydd &'r Comisiwn Ewropeaidd ynghyd &'r angen i
esbonio goblygiadau cynllun ar ei newydd wedd i ymgeiswyr newydd ac ymgeiswyr
presennol.

3.7. Mae'n werth cofio profiad cynllun Tir Gofal ar 61 y cyfnod ymgeisio cyntaf yn
1999. Bryd hynny bu bron 50% o'r ymgeiswyr yn aflwyddiannus gan fethu & gwneud
cais arall yn y cylch dilynol er bod y dull dewis wedi cael ei newid. Mae cynllun Glastir
eisoes wedi bod drwy gymaint o newidiadau fel bod cyfnod o sefydlogrwydd yn
ymddangos yn hanfodol bellach.

Coetir

3.8. Pan ddechreuwyd datblygu Glastir, rhoddwyd cymorth i greu coetir a rheoli
coetir gan gynllun Coetiroedd Gwell i Gymru (BWW) fel y'i gweinyddir gan Gomisiwn
Coedwigaeth Cymru. Er bod Cynlluniau Creu Coetir a Rheoli Coetir newydd Glastir
wedi cael eu datblygu erbyn hyn, ni fydd yr elfen coetir yn cael ei hintegreiddio'n
llawn yn Glastir (gyda gweinyddiaeth gan Lywodraeth Cymru) tan ddiwedd 2012. O
ganlyniad, mae cynllun cyfredol Glastir yn methu a thrin cymhellion ynglyn & choed a
choetiroedd mewn ffordd ddi-dor. Er enghraifft, gallai rhai glaswelltiroedd asid
ucheldirol a gyflwynwyd o dan AWE fod ar gael ar gyfer Cynllun Creu Coetir Glastir,
ond mae'n debyg eu bod wedi'u cloi i mewn o dan ofyniad AWE i gynnal cynefinoedd
lled-naturiol o dan God y Fferm Gyfan. At hynny, mae ymgeiswyr i gynlluniau coetir
Glastir nad ydynt yn ffermio yn tueddu i gael mwy o drafferth wrth ymdrin &
phrosesau a luniwyd yn bennaf ar gyfer cynlluniau amaethyddol.

3.9. Sefydlwyd Cynllun Creu Coetir Glastir i gyflawni'r targed o greu 100,000
hectar o goetir newydd dros gyfnod o 20 mlynedd, fel yr argymhellwyd gan yr
adroddiad ar Ddefnydd Tir a Newid Hinsawdd a gyflwynwyd i Lywodraeth Cymru yn
2010. Y nod oedd llunio proses ymgeisio symlach a dosbarthodd y ‘map o gyfleoedd
plannu coetir’ ar wefan Comisiwn Coedwigaeth Cymru ofynion ymgynghori yn 6l set
o gyfyngiadau gofodol (gan gynnwys bioamrywiaeth a nodweddion hanesyddol).

3.10. Yn ymarferol, mae gan lawer o berchenogion tir fwy o ddiddordeb mewn creu
coetir newydd ar dir isel ei gynhyrchiant, y mae llawer ohono yn gynefin lled-naturiol.
Yn anffodus, gall hyn wrthdaro ag egwyddor gwarchod cynefinoedd & blaenoriaeth a
rhywogaethau adran 42 fel y'u gelwir®. Mae'r cynefinoedd a'r rhywogaethau hyn yn

8 Fel y'u rhestrir yn adran 42 o Ddeddf yr Amgylchedd Naturiol a Chymunedau Gwledig 2006 (Cynefinoedd a Rhywogaethau
Pwysig lawn er mwyn Gwarchod Amrywiaeth Fiolegol)

Tudalery yopecyn 39



cynnwys y dangosyddion ar gyfer cyflawni Canlyniad 21 y Strategaeth Amgylcheddol
ar gyfer Cymru (2006), sef:

“Rhoddwyd terfyn ar golli bioamrywiaeth a gallwn weld adferiad pendant yn nifer,
ystod ac amrywiaeth genetig rhywogaethau”.

3.11. Mae CCGC o'r farn ei bod yn hanfodol bod y gwaith o asesu ceisiadau o dan
Gynllun Creu Coetir Glastir yn parhau i gael ei wneud gan swyddogion hyfforddedig a
chwbl annibynnol er mwyn osgoi achosion posibl o wrthdaro buddiannau.

3.12. Mae'r ffaith bod cynllun Creu Coetir cyfredol Glastir yn gymharol anhyblyg
hefyd yn destun pryder i CCGC. Er enghraifft, ni ellir ei ddefnyddio i helpu i greu
coetir newydd drwy broses aildyfu naturiol, nac ychwaith i fodloni gofynion y
canllawiau yn New Native Woodlands (Bwletin 112 y Comisiwn Coedwigaeth). Fely
nodwyd uchod, ceir rhai ardaloedd o fewn safleoedd dynodedig (SoDdGA), yn
enwedig ar dir uchel, lle y byddai'n fuddiol creu coetir brodorol newydd, ond mae'n
bosibl nad yw cynllun Creu Coetir Glastir yn gymwys yn y fath achosion ac nid oes
unrhyw gynlluniau grant eraill ar gael ar hyn o bryd. At hynny, ceir cyfleoedd mewn
mannau eraill i ddatblygu coetiroedd brodorol newydd sy'n cyrraedd safonau ecolegol
uwch na'r rhai sy'n debygol o gael eu darparu o dan Gynllun Creu Coetir Glastir.

3.13. Mae ein profiad o Gynllun Rheoli Coetir Glastir yn gyfyngedig iawn o hyd am
mai dim ond ar ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2012 y caeodd y cyfnod cyntaf ar gyfer
“datganiadau o ddiddordeb”. Mae nifer o'r ffermydd a ddewiswyd ar gyfer Elfen wedi'i
Thargedu Glastir yn perthyn i haen amcanion coetir y system wybodaeth
ddaearyddol (GIS) a gofynnir iddynt reoli coetir fel rhan o'u contractau. Mae'n rhy
gynnar o hyd i fesur pa mor effeithiol fydd y broses hon.

4. Gweithredu Argymhellion o Adolygiad Rees Roberts

4.1. Nichynrychiolwyd CCGC ar Grwp Adolygu Annibynnol Glastir, ond
cyflwynodd sylwadau manwl yn ysgrifenedig®. Y peth pwysicaf i ni bryd hynny oedd
sicrhau bod cymaint & phosibl o gontractau Glastir yn cael eu llofnodi cyn gynted a
phosibl. Dyma ein dyhead o hyd ac rydym yn dal i ddisgwyl i bob contract AWE
unigol sicrhau mantais amgylcheddol yn ogystal a rhoi llwyfan addas i gyflawni'r Elfen
wedi'i Thargedu.

4.2. Erbyn hyn Glastir yw'r prif ddull o hyrwyddo'r dull ecosystem o reoli tir fel y'i
disgrifir yn “Cynnal Cymru Fyw” yn ogystal & chyflawni'r targedau amgylcheddol a
nodir yn y Strategaeth Amgylcheddol ar gyfer Cymru (yn enwedig y rhai sy'n
ymwneud a rhwymedigaethau ar lefel yr UE o ran safleoedd Natura 2000 a'r
Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Dwr). Mae Ymchwiliad blaenorol Pwyllgor Cynaliadwyedd
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i fioamrywiaeth hefyd yn berthnasol, yn enwedig yr
argymhelliad y “Dylai'r adolygiad o gynllun Glastir ystyried a yw'r cynllun yn gwneud y
cyfraniad gorau posibl tuag at gyrraedd targedau bioamrywiaeth”.

4.3. Gwnaeth Grnwp Adolygu Annibynnol Glastir 69 o argymhellion yn ymdrin &
dylunio cynlluniau a phroses, y derbyniwyd y rhan fwyaf ohonynt gan Lywodraeth
Cymru. Roedd CCGC yn arbennig o gefnogol i'r cynnig i uno opsiynau 16-18 i greu
un opsiwn ar gyfer tir uchel, ond gyda'r cyfraddau stocio yn cael eu cyfrifo yn 6l

° Mae copi o gyflwyniad CCGC ar gael ar gais

Tudalen g pecyn 40



cyfrannau'r gwahanol gynefinoedd lled-naturiol, gweler y dull gweithredu a
fabwysiadwyd ar gyfer tir comin. Mae'r penderfyniad i greu opsiynau newydd 41A a
41B wedi arwain at leihad sylweddol yn nifer yr anawsterau a wynebir wrth roi
caniatadau SoDdGA (cynhyrchai'r defnydd blaenorol o'r “rheol prif gynefinoedd” yn
aml gyfradd stocio amhriodol).

4.4. Roedd CCGC hefyd yn gefnogol, ar y cyfan, i'r cynnig i greu trothwy lefel
mynediad is. Roedd gan yr argymhelliad hwn y potensial i gael cryn effaith ar
ganlyniadau cynlluniau - gan eu gwanhau pe bai cyfanswm yr allbynnau
amgylcheddol yn cael ei leihau, ond eu hatgyfnerthu pe bai'n rhoi cyfle i ffermydd na
fyddent wedi ymuno a'r cynllun fel arall wneud hynny. Yn ddelfrydol, dylai'r lefel
mynediad is helpu ffermydd a reolir yn ddwysach i ymuno a'r cynllun AWE llawn
rywbryd yn ystod pum mlynedd gyntaf y contract. Yn yr un modd, am na chaniateir i
gyfranogwyr yn y lefel mynediad is ymuno & chynllun ACRES mwyach, dylai hyn roi
opsiwn amgen i'r Elfen wedi'i Thargedu wrth ymdrin & materion ansawdd dwr. Mae
angen gwneud rhagor o waith i nodi i ba raddau y mae hyn yn digwydd mewn
gwirionedd.

4.5. Mae gan CCGC bryderon sylweddol o hyd ynghylch gweithredu nifer o
argymhellion eraill y Grwp Adolygu. Yn benodol, mae'r penderfyniad i greu opsiynau
15B a 15D yn darparu ar gyfer taenu hyd at 50kg/ha o nitrogen anorganig ynghyd a
hyd at 50kg/ha o nitrogen bob blwyddyn ar unrhyw dir pori parhaol (gan gynnwys
cynefinoedd lled-naturiol sy'n bodoli eisoes). Dengys ymchwil flaenorol y gall taenu
dim ond 25kg/ha o nitrogen (fel gwrtaith anorgig) bob blwyddyn amharu cryn dipyn ar
fflora glaswelltiroedd cyfoethog eu rhywogaethau'®. Ymddengys fod mewnbynnau
tail buarth o ddim mwy na'r hyn sy'n cyfateb i tua 5-6 tunnell fesul hectar bob
blwyddyn (sy'n cyfateb i 30-36 kg o nitrogen) yn addas i gynnal gweirgloddiau niwtral
cyfoethog eu rhywogaethau yng Nghymru a Cumbria.’.

4.6 Mae targedau presennol Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer atal cynefinoedd
glaswelltir & blaenoriaeth a nodir yn y Cynllun Gweithredu Bioamrywiaeth rhag cael
eu colli yn debygol o gael eu tanseilio gan y defnydd o opsiynau 15B a 15D os caiff y
rhain eu defnyddio ar laswelltiroedd lled-naturiol. Mae taenu gwrtaith anorganig ar
laswelltir lled-naturiol yn gofyn am wneud eithriad i God Fferm Gyfan Glastir ac
ymddengys ei fod yn groes i ofynion y Rheoliadau Asesu Effeithiau Amgylcheddol
(Tir Heb Ei Drin) ac felly ei fod yn torri amodau trawsgydymffurfio. At hynny, bydd yn
anodd ac yn ddrud adfer gwerth bioamrywiaeth glaswelltiroedd lled-naturiol unwaith
y bydd niwed wedi'i wneud. Felly, mae CCGC wedi argymell mai dim ond ar
laswelltiroedd a wellwyd yn amaethyddol (mae'r rhain yn cynnwys mwy na 90% o'r
glaswelltiroedd iseldirol yng Nghymru) y dylid caniatau Opsiynau 15B a 15D. At
hynny, ymddengys fod y lefel uchaf o nitrogen a ganiateir o dan AWE (sef 100kg/ha
y flwyddyn) yn dal i fod yn uwch na'r cyfraddau taenu cyfredol ar y glaswelltiroedd
wedi'u gwella a reolir yn llai dwys yng Nghymru'2. O ganlyniad, ymddengys fod y
rhan hon o'r AWE yn sicrhau ychydig iawn o fanteision amgylcheddol a'i fod yn
peryglu rhai ardaloedd pwysig o gynefin bywyd gwylit.

% smith, R.S. (1993) Effects of fertiliser on plant species composition and conservation interest of UK grassland.

" Kirkham, F. W., Tallowin, J. R. B., Sanderson, R. A., Bhogal, A., Chambers, B. J., Stevens, D. P. 2008. The impact of organic
and inorganic fertilizers and lime on the species-richness and plant functional characteristics of hay meadow communities.
Biological Conservation 141, 1411-1427.

12
http://www.defra.gov.uk/statistics/files/defra-stats-foodfarm-environ-fertiliserpractice-2010.pdf

Tudalexy yopecyn 41



4.7. Dylai newid y terfynau pwyntiau a gymhwysir at y gwahanol opsiynau o
ganlyniad i'r Adolygiad fod wedi sicrhau rhai manteision ar ucheldir. Rhoddodd
CCGC dystiolaeth yn dangos, am mai tir cynefin a geid yn bennaf yn y sefyllfaoedd
hyn, mai ychydig iawn o opsiynau AWE a oedd ar Ol i lawer o ffermwyr ddewis o'u
plith wrth geisio llunio cais. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru bellach wedi rhoi'r Adolygiad ar
waith yn y fath fodd ag y gall ffermwyr ymuno a'r cynllun drwy gael hyd at 90% o'u
pwyntiau o un opsiwn cynefin, ond fel arfer mae angen o leiaf dri Opsiwn AWE o hyd.

4.8. Erein bod yn cefnogi'r egwyddor y dylai ffermwyr orfod dewis o leiaf rai o'r
opsiynau sy'n fwy buddiol i'r amgylchedd ochr yn ochr &'r rhai a all fod ychydig yn llai
ymestynnol, mae CCGC o'r farn na ddylid caniatau i ffermwyr ymuno &'r cynllun &
dim ond un opsiwn cynefin ar yr amod bod ganddynt ddigon o dir i gyflawni'r sgér
trothwy. Byddai cymryd y fath gam yn lleihau ymhellach un o'r rhwystrau i fynediad
sydd ar &l tra'n helpu i gyflawni amcanion o ran bioamrywiaeth, ansawdd dwr a newid
yn yr hinsawdd.

4.9. Ary llaw arall, mae'r gofyniad presennol ar gyfer dim llai na thri opsiwn yn
golygu y gall ffermwyr bellach fod yn gymwys i gael AWE drwy wneud fawr ddim mwy
na rheoli ffiniau caeau. Fel y digwyddodd mewn rhannau eraill o'r DU, mae risg y
bydd y dull hwn o weithredu yn amharu ar allu'r cynllun i gyflawni'r ystod lawn o
amcanion amgylcheddol. Felly, mae CCGC yn argymell y dylid defnyddio'r "rhestr
ranedig" fel y'i gelwir, lle mae ymgeiswyr yn gorfod dewis o leiaf rai opsiynau o grivp
A (ffiniau caeau) ac o leiaf rai opsiynau o grwp B (cynefinoedd eraill, ansawdd dwr ac
ati). Er mwyn sicrhau cysondeb a'r pwynt a wnaed ym mharagraff 4.7 uchod, gellid
gwneud eithriad lle roedd yr holl bwyntiau yn dod o Grwp B.

4.10. Gwnaeth y Grwp Adolygu argymhelliad hefyd ar symleiddio'r Pecynnau
Rhanbarthol. Mae'r fath becynnau yn arwain at 10% yn cael ei ychwanegu at y
pwyntiau sydd ar gael lle bynnag y gall yr opsiynau perthnasol sicrhau mantais
amgylcheddol benodol yn yr ardal ddaearyddol dan sylw. Mae'r rheolau presennol
bellach yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i 75% o'r pwyntiau ddod o'r tri gnwvp o opsiynau
rheoli a restrir yn y Pecyn Rhanbarthol perthnasol gydag o leiaf 15% o'r pwyntiau yn
dod o bob un o'r tri grwp.

4.11. Er gwaethaf y newidiadau a wnaed o ganlyniad i'r Adolygiad, mae'r Pecynnau
rhanbarthol yn parhau i ychwanegu cryn dipyn o gymhlethdod i'r pecynnau cais. Ar
hyn o bryd mae esboniadau manwl o'r pecynnau yn llenwi dim llai na 16 o
dudalennau. Mae CCGC yn cefnogi defnyddio Pecynnau Rhanbarthol, ond mae o'r
farn y gallent gael eu darparu mewn ffordd lawer mwy ysbrydoledig tra'n lleihau maint
y gwaith papur a anfonir at bob ymgeisydd yn sylweddol.

4.12. Am fod pob un o'r mapiau a anfonir at bob ymgeisydd wedi'i bersonoli gan yr
Is-adran Taliadau Gwledig, dylai fod modd darparu Pecyn Rhanbarthol personoledig
ar yr un pryd. Mewn geiriau eraill, byddai ffermwr yn Abertawe neu Ynys Mén yn cael
manylion y Pecyn rhanbarthol perthnasol fel mewnosodiad ar wahan yn y pecyn cais.
Yn ddelfrydol, byddai'r mewnosodiad yn cynnwys rhai lluniau a ffeithiau allweddol er
mwyn annog mwy o ymgysylltu a'r syniad o ddewis opsiynau penodol er mwyn
diogelu rhywogaethau penodol. Wedyn ni fyddai angen rhoi manylion y 15 o
becynnau eraill sydd ar gael ledled Cymru.

Tudalen yopegyn 42



5. Gweithredu Argymhellion o adroddiad ‘Hwyluso'r Drefn’.

5.1. Roedd yr adroddiad diweddar gan Gareth Williams™' yn cynnwys 74 o
argymhellion unigol. O ran Glastir, ymddengys mai'r argymhellion pwysicaf yw'r rhai
sy'n ymdrin a'r canlynol:

e cyfleu gwybodaeth am ffynonellau cymorth ar gyfer y diwydiant amaethyddol
(A1);

e cynyddu maint y Gwasanaeth Cysylltwyr Fferm a defnyddio profiad sydd ar
gael mewn asiantaethau allanol (A2);

e defnyddio gwefan Llywodraeth Cymru i nodi ystyr amrywiaeth eang o
acronymau a thermau technegol megis cynaliadwyedd a bioamrywiaeth (A7);

e sicrhau bod partion a diddordeb yn cael eu cynnwys yn y broses o ddatblygu
systemau ar-lein ar gyfer holl gynlluniau PAC drwy'r Grwp Rhanddeiliaid
Systemau Ar-lein (A11).

5.2.  Ynunol ag Argymhelliad 48 (rhoi enghreifftiau cadarn i ddangos bod arfer
amgylcheddol da yn hollol gydnaws & chynhyrchu bwyd tra'n gwella perfformiad a
phroffidioldeb busnesau), yn ddiweddar comisiynodd CCGC a'i chwaer-asiantaethau
ADAS i nodi prif nodweddion dwysau cynaliadwy yng nghyd-destun y DU. Bydd hyn
yn golygu datblygu 20 o astudiaethau achos lefel fferm wedi'u meintioli. Bydd pob un
o'r rhain yn cynnwys asesiad o effeithiau mabwysiadu gwahanol ddulliau o gynyddu
cynhyrchiant bwyd a darparu gwasanaethau ecosystem eraill gan ddefnyddio
amrywiaeth o ddangosyddion, gan gynnwys cynhyrchiant net fesul ardal uned;
gollyngiadau nwyon ty gwydr; ansawdd dwr; tirwedd a bioamrywiaeth. Caiff yr
astudiaethau achos eu defnyddio wedyn i ysgogi rhagor o drafodaeth o fewn cyfres o
grwpiau ffocws ffermwyr cyn i'r adroddiad terfynol gael ei ddarparu ar ddechrau
hydref 2012.

6. Mynd i'r Afael 4 Rhwystrau i Fynediad

6.1. Bwriedir i'r gofyniad cyfredol i gael pwyntiau o dan o leiaf dri opsiwn AWE
sicrhau bod niferoedd rhesymol yn parhau i ymgymryd a'r holl fesurau a gynigir. Mae
CCGC yn cefnogi'r dull hwn o weithredu y bwriedir iddo osgoi'r math o broblemau
sydd wedi codi mewn rhannau eraill o'r DU. Serch hynny, gall y dull gweithredu a
ddewiswyd roi'r ffermwyr hynny ag ardaloedd mawr o gynefin ucheldirol lled-naturiol
o dan anfantais. Mae CCGC yn awgrymu y dylai fod modd i ffermwyr o'r fath gael ei
holl bwyntiau o un opsiwn cynefin yn unig ar yr amod bod ganddynt ddigon o dir i
gyflawni'r sgér trothwy.

6.2. Fely disgrifiwyd uchod, mae sawl rhwystr mwy sylweddol arall i fynediad. Mae
rhai o'r rhain, megis y broses gwneud cais, llenyddiaeth cynlluniau a'r dull o gadw
cofnodion ar y fferm fwy neu lai o dan reolaeth uniongyrchol Llywodraeth Cymru. Dim
ond drwy gyfranogiad Llywodraeth Cymru mewn trafodaethau Ewropeaidd parhaus y
gellir ymdrin & rhai materion, megis y cynnig i wyrddu Colofn 1 PAC. Mae codiadau
ym mhrisiau da byw (ochr yn ochr &'r codiad cyfochrog yng nghostau mewnbynnau)
hefyd yn debygol o atal rhai ymgeiswyr, ond mae diwygio cyfraddau talu yn broses
gymhleth a hir a ystyrir yn fanylach yn adran 8.

3 Hwyluso’r Drefn. Adroddiad o argymhellion i Lywodraeth Cymru ar well rheoleiddio ym maes ffermio.
Gareth J. Williams, Rhagfyr 2011.

Tudalen/ypecyn 43



7. Hyblygrwydd rhwng ariannu gwahanol elfennau o'r cynllun

7.1. Mae'r modd y dyrennir arian o fewn Glastir yn dibynnu i raddau helaeth ar nifer
yr ymgeiswyr ar gyfer AWE a CLE yn ogystal & maint y ffermydd dan sylw. Mae nifer
y contractau AWE a CLE a lofnodwyd wedyn yn rhoi'r cyd-destun ar gyfer dewis
ffermydd Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu unigol. At hynny, mae angen digon o arian i dalu am
y cynllun creu coetir, y cynllun rheoli coetir a'r Cynllun Lleihau Carbon Amaethyddol
ac Effeithlonrwydd (ACRES).

7.2.  Mae tua 420 o ffermydd bellach wedi'u dewis i gael ymweliad o dan yr Elfen
Wedi'i Thargedu gan gynnwys o leiaf 70 o diroedd comin. Mae'r rhan hon o'r cynllun
ar gam cynnar iawn yn ei datblygiad ac mae CCGC ar ddeall i tua 30 o ymweliadau
gael eu cynnal hyd yma. Mae'r Elfen Wedi'i Thargedu yn hanfodol i sicrhau targedau
Llywodraeth Cymru a'r GE o ran mynd i'r afael & bioamrywiaeth, rheoli dwr a newid
yn yr hinsawdd. O ganlyniad, rhaid sicrhau bod digon o reolwyr contract ar gael i
gyflawni'r rhan hon o'r cynllun. Bydd angen gwneud rhagor o waith i nodi faint o
amser staff fydd ei angen i baratoi'r mathau o gontract sydd eu hangen.

7.3. Roedd CCGC o blaid cyflwyno ACRES, gan nodi'r manteision i'r diwydiant
amaethyddol a chymdeithas ehangach a fydd yn deillio o alluogi ffermwyr i leihau 6l
troed carbon eu busnesu unigol. Mae sicrhau bod ffermwyr yn llofnodi contract AWE
cyn ymuno a chynllun ACRES yn ei gwneud yn bosibl i roi grantiau cyfalaf i'r rhai sy'n
cymryd rhan yn ACRES ar lefel mynediad, ond bydd angen cynnal arolygiadau o
ddwy ran y cynllun ar yr un pryd o hyd.

7.4. Am fod ACRES wedi'i anelu'n bennaf at ffermydd mwy dwys, mae CCGC am
sicrhau bod y rhan hon o gynllun Glastir yn cael ei defnyddio i hyrwyddo dwysau
cynaliadwy yn yr ystyr y dylai manteision amgylcheddol gael eu sicrhau ochr yn ochr
ag unrhyw gynnydd mewn cynhyrchiant. Mae CCGC hefyd o'r farn bod angen
datblygu'r cysyniad o ddwysau cynaliadwy yng nghyd-destun Cynnal Cymru Fyw. Er
enghraifft, o ystyried poblogaeth y byd a thueddiadau o ran defnyddio adnoddau,
mae'n anochel y bydd angen cynhyrchu mwy o bob erw o dir yn y dyfodol. Fodd
bynnag, mae a wnelo hyn & mwy na chynhyrchiant amaethyddol, am fod tyfu coed,
neilltuo carbon, rheoli dwr, mynd i'r afael & phroblem colli bioamrywiaeth, gwella
tirweddau diwylliannol a darparu cyfleoedd hamdden oll yn gwneud cyfraniad
sylweddol. Mewn geiriau eraill, mae'r cysyniad o ddwysau cynaliadwy yn cwmpasu'r
holl wasanaethau ecosystem posibl y gellir eu darparu drwy wella prosesau rheoli.

7.5. Yn ddiweddar cododd Llywodraeth Cymru y posibilrwydd o gyflwyno cynllun
Amlen Genedlaethol er mwyn cefnogi'r sectorau hynny a allai fod ar eu colled yn sgil
y diwygiadau arfaethedig i PAC a'r newid i daliadau ardal a fydd yn deillio o hynny.
Os bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn penderfynu rhoi rhagor o gymorth i'r sector cig eidion
a'r sector llaeth dwys, mae CCGC o'r farn y dylai hyn fod yn amodol ar y fath
ffermwyr yn cymryd camau pellach i hyrwyddo dwysau cynaliadwy drwy leihau
allyriadau nwyon ty gwydr, gwella ansawdd dwr a hybu iechyd anifeiliaid. Mae'n
debyg y bydd cysylltu unrhyw Amlen Genedlaethol & chymryd rhan yn AWE ac
ACRES yn effeithio ar y cydbwysedd rhwng gwahanol elfennau Glastir.

Tudalen y2pegyn 44



8. Costio'r gwahanol opsiynau a gynigir o dan AWE a'r Elfen wedi'i Thargedu

8.1. Nid yw CCGC wedi ymwneud yn uniongyrchol & chyfrifo'r cyfraddau talu sydd
bellach yn cael eu defnyddio yn Glastir, er i'n tim cyngor amaethyddol gyflawni'r rol
hon yn flaenorol o ran Tir Cymen a Tir Gofal. Mae tim asiantaeth tir CCGC yn
parhau i drafod y taliadau sy'n cael eu gwneud o dan gytundebau rheoli unigol ar
SoDdGAau.

8.2. Caiff cyfraddau talu amaeth-amgylchedd eu cyfrifo yn 6l y darpariaethau a
nodir yn Erthygl 39 o Reoliad Datblygu Gwledig y CE ac mae'n ofynnol iddynt
gynnwys y “costau ychwanegol a'r incwm a ildiwyd” sy'n deillio o'r ymrwymiad
perthnasol. Lle y bo angen, gall y taliadau hefyd gynnwys “costau trafod” (mewn
fersiynau blaenorol o'r Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig disgrifiwyd y rhain fel taliadau
cymhelliant ac fe'u pennwyd yn uchafswm o 20% o'r incwm a ildiwyd + costau gyda'i

gilydd).

8.3. Mae'r broses o gyfrifo lefelau talu unigol ar gyfer pob opsiwn rheoli o fewn
cynllun sydd ar gael yn genedlaethol yn cynnwys ystyried amrywiaeth eang o fathau
o ffermydd a sefylifaoedd ffermio. Wrth benderfynu p'un a ddylent wneud cais ai
peidio, bydd effaith gyffredinol “bwndelu ynghyd” nifer fawr o gyfraddau talu unigol o
fewn contract penodol hefyd yn cael dylanwad ar ffermwyr. Mae hefyd angen
ystyried newidiadau mewn elw gros (sef y gwahaniaeth rhwng enillion a chostau
amaethyddol ar gyfer mentrau penodol) dros amser. Fodd bynnag, mae adolygiadau
mynych o gyfraddau talu yn codi problemau am fod pob ymarfer o'r fath yn defnyddio
cryn dipyn o adnoddau. At hynny, mae'n rhaid i newidiadau mewn cyfraddau talu
gael eu cymeradwyo gan y Comisiwn Ewropeaidd.

8.4. Mater arall i'w ystyried wrth bennu cyfraddau talu yw'r gydberthynas rhwng
cyfanswm cost contractau presennol a maint y gyllideb yn gyffredinol. Yn gyffredinol,
mae'n debyg y bydd cynyddu lefel y taliad ar gyfer niferoedd mawr o opsiynau unigol
cymharol boblogaidd yn arwain at leihad yn nifer y contractau y gellir eu llofnodi.
Fodd bynnag, nid ydym yn awgrymu y dylai pob taliad gael ei bennu ar yr un ganran
o incwm a ildiwyd ynghyd & chostau - mae amrywio'r ganran a delir (ac ychwanegu
elfen o gostau trafod lle y bo angen) yn ffordd ddefnyddiol o gynyddu'r nifer sy'n
dewis yr opsiynau llai poblogaidd. Bydd cymhwyso'r fath ddull gweithredu at Glastir
yn gofyn am fwy o ddata ar nifer y ffermwyr sy'n dewis gwahanol opsiynau. Bydd yn
anodd cael y wybodaeth hon ar hyn o bryd o gofio bod contractau'r cylch cyntaf o
dan AWE yn dal i gael eu llofnodi tra mai newydd ddechrau y mae trafodaethau ar
gyfer cylch cyntaf contractau Elfen wedi'i Thargedu.

8.5. Mae'r Papur Gwyrdd ar Gynnal Cymru Fyw yn cyfeirio at “dadlau dros
gyfundrefn sy'n fwy rhesyme?ol yn economaidd ar gyfer talu ffermwyr am gyflawni
canlyniadau amgylcheddol’**. Er nad oes modd newid y fformiwla “incwm a ildiwyd
ynghyd & chostau” presennol i bob diben (mae wedi'i ymgorffori yng nghytundeb
presennol Sefydliad Masnach y Byd ar natur y Blwch Gwyrdd sy'n cyfeirio yn ei dro at

1 Cynnal Cymru Fyw: Papur Gwyrdd ar ddull newydd o reoli adnoddau naturiol Cymru. Dogfen Ymgynghori Llywoderaeth
Cymru. lonawr 2012. (Tudalen 14).

Tudaleg/ypecyn 45



y cymorthdaliadau hynny y tybir eu bod yn cael effaith fach iawn ar gynhyrchiant)
mae union eiriad y fformiwla yn gadael cryn dipyn o le i'w newid. Yn benodol, mae
gwaith a wnaed yn ddiweddar gan CCGC ac asiantaethau cefn gwlad eraill yn y DU
wedi dangos bod lle i roi mwy o bwyslais ar gostau darparu gwasanaethau penodol
(yn enwedig yn achos systemau ffermio aneconomaidd)'. Fodd bynnag, fel y
nodwyd uchod, bydd goblygiadau penodol i gynyddu cyfraddau talu wrth weithredu o
fewn cyllideb sefydlog.

9. Ariannu o fewn Ardaloedd Llai Ffafriol

9.1. Mae ucheldir Cymru yn ased pwysig, sy'n helpu i ddiffinio'r cymeriad
cenedlaethol. Yn arbennig, mae'r Ardal Anfanteisiol lawn (SDA) yn cwmpasu'r
eangderau mwyaf o dirwedd a chynefin lled-naturiol cyflawn yn y wlad; yn cyflenwi
dwr yn ogystal a chyfrannu at y gwaith o reoli llifogydd; yn storio cryn dipyn o garbon
pridd (sy'n cyflwyno risgiau a chyfleoedd o ran mynd i'r afael & newid yn yr hinsawdd)
ac yn cyfrannu at iechyd a lles drwy ddarparu adnodd enfawr ar gyfer
gweithgareddau hamdden awyr agored.

9.2. Mae'r SDA hefyd yn cynorthwyo niferoedd mawr o fusnesau amaethyddol sy'n
ymwneud a rheoli tir pori garw lled-naturiol yn ogystal &'r hendre cysylltiedig. Mae
gadael i dir fynd yn segur yn dod yn broblem mewn rhai mannau, er, mewn mannau
eraill, gall y cynnydd diweddar mewn prisiau Wyn arwain at welliannau amaethyddol
graddol pellach.

9.3. Fely rhagwelwyd yn wreiddiol, byddai cynnydd o 20% yn y taliad AWE
sylfaenol o £28/ha wedi bod ar gael ar dir LFA drwyddi draw. Ni chafodd hyn ei
gymeradwyo gan y Comisiwn Ewropeaidd, serch hynny, ac mae'r un taliad bellach yn
gymwys i bob darn o dir yng Nghymru. Mae'r taliad safonol newydd o £34/ha yn
sicrhau bod pob ffermwr LFA ychydig yn well eu byd nag o dan y system wreiddiol.
Eto i gyd, mae'r gwahaniaeth o ran LFA wedi cael ei ddileu ynghyd & darparu
cynnydd sylweddol y tu allan i'r LFA.

9.4. Wrth ystyried a yw'r taliad AWE presennol yn dderbyniol ai peidio, ffactor
allweddol yw p'un a yw'n rhoi digon o gymhelliant i ffermwyr LFA wneud cais i ymuno
a Glastir. Mae enillion amaethyddol wedi gwella'n sylweddol ers i'r cynllun gael ei
lansio ac er yr aed i'r afael &'r mater o ildio incwm ar yr iseldir, nid yw'r un peth yn wir
am yr LFA. Ary llaw arall, mae newidiadau diweddar i'r system sgorio yn golygu bod
llawer o ffermydd LFA bellach yn gallu ymuno & Glastir drwy ddewis opsiynau
cynefinoedd yn unig. Mae'r ffaith nad oes angen i ffermydd o'r fath wneud
buddsoddiad ymlaen llaw mewn gwaith cyfalaf yn debygol o wneud i'r taliad
presennol ymddangos yn fwy deniadol, mewn rhai achosion o leiaf.

9.5. Yr anhawster wrth geisio addasu taliadau Glastir dros y 18 mis nesaf yw y
bydd unrhyw gamau o'r fath yn cymryd cryn dipyn o amser ac mae'n bur debyg y
bydd digwyddiadau yn mynd yn drech na hwy. Bydd y cynigion presennol i ddiwygio
PAC yn cyflwyno taliadau ardal o dan yr SPS tra bod Ardaloedd & Chyfyngiadau
Naturiol (AChNau) yn cymryd lle pob LFA. Fel rhan o'r AChNau newydd defnyddir
meini prawf dynodi newydd (gan arwain at ffin sy'n wahanol i'r hyn a ddefnyddir o
dan y system LFA efallai) tra y gall Llywodraeth Cymru yn fuan fod yn gwneud

15 Barnes A.P., Schwarz G., Keenleyside C., Thomson S., Waterhouse T., Polokova J., Stewart S., McCracken D. (2011)
Alternative payment approaches for non-economic farming systems delivering environmental public goods. Ar gael yn:
http://www.sac.ac.uk/ruralpolicycentre/publs/supporttoagriculture/alternativepaymentapproaches/

Tudalen ypegyn 46




taliadau cymorth AChN o'r tu mewn i Golofn 1 a Cholofn 2. O ganlyniad, ymddengys
ei bod ychydig yn rhy gynnar i addasu'r taliad AWE, o gofio bod angen i
benderfyniadau ynghylch y ffordd orau o integreiddio'r mesurau cymorth ucheldir
amrywiol sy'n debygol o fod ar gael gael eu gwneud o hyd.

9.6. Os bydd angen mesurau Colofn 2 newydd i liniaru'r effaith ar sectorau mwy
helaeth o'r newid sydd ar ddod i daliadau ardal, un posibilrwydd fyddai ystyried p'un a
ellid datblygu elfen ar wahén o AWE Glastir er mwyn cynnig cymorth ychwanegol ar
yr ucheldiroedd/ar dir y tu mewn i'r gweundir. Gellid cymryd camau o'r fath i sicrhau
bod cynnig unrhyw daliad ychwanegol (a fyddai'n gyfnewid am set benodol o
ymrwymiadau uwchlaw'r rhai sydd ar gael ar hyn o bryd o dan yr AWE) yn gyson a'r
broses ecosystemau a nodir yn Cynnal Cymru Fyw. Gan nad yw'r un lefel o gymorth
fesul hectar yn debygol o fod yn angenrheidiol ar ffermydd mawr iawn yn yr un modd
ag ar unedau bach a chanolig, gallai'r taliadau gael eu lleihau yn 6l maint y fferm, fel
a wnaed yn achos Tir Mynydd.

9.7. Gallai darparu elfen ucheldir o fewn Glastir hefyd helpu rhai o ffermydd Tir
Gofal na fyddant yn gymwys am yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu efallai, ond y mae eu model
busnes (a'u systemau cyflawni amgylcheddol) wedi dibynnu ar gyfuniad o daliadau
amaeth-amgylchedd uwch ynghyd & Tir Mynydd.

10. Gwelliannau a Awgrymir i'r Cynllun

10.1. Fel egwyddor gyffredinol, mae CCGC o'r farn y dylai unrhyw newidiadau mawr
i ddyluniad y cynllun gael eu gohirio nes bod y CDGC nesaf wedi dechrau. Yny
cyfamser, dylid rhoi'r pwyslais ar wella'r broses gwneud cais er mwyn cynnal
momentwm tra'n addasu rhai o'r opsiynau presennol o ran AWE er mwyn osgoi
unrhyw effeithiau croes. Gwnawn yr argymhellion penodol canlynol:

(i). Er mwyn diogelu gwerth bioamrywiaeth glaswelltiroedd lled-naturiol sy'n
bodoli eisoes, dim ond ar laswelltiroedd sydd wedi‘'u gwella y dylid defnyddio
opsiynau 15B a 15D AWE. Mae glaswelltiroedd o'r fath yn dal i gynnwys dros 90% o
laswelltiroedd tir isel Cymru.

(ii). Gallai proses gwneud cais yr AWE fod yn fwy hyblyg a hwylus. Roedd y
targedau cychwynnol yn uchelgeisiol iawn ac o ganlyniad i hynny cafwyd proses a
gynlluniwyd i ymdrin a nifer fawr o geisiadau mewn braidd dim amser. Yn sgil y
gwaith o ehangu Tir Mynydd, Tir Cynnal a Tir Gofal, lleihaodd nifer y ceisiadau yn
sylweddol ac mae'r sefyllfa hon wedi cael ei gwaethygu gan nifer o ffactorau eraill yn
cynnwys y cynnydd mewn enillion amaethyddol ac ansicrwydd parhaus ynghylch
diwygio PAC. Mae llai o geisiadau yn dod i law bellach a gellid ymdrin &'r rhain drwy
roi mwy o ryddid i ffermwyr newid yr amseroedd y maent yn mynd i gyfarfodydd
mewn Swyddfeydd Rhanbarthol. Gallai'r llythyrau cysylltiedig hefyd gael eu
hysgrifennu mewn ffordd fwy calonogol. Yn ystod y cylch cyntaf, cafodd nifer fechan
iawn o geisiadau eu troi'n gontractau a oedd yn siomedig. Dylai proses fwy hwylus
helpu i wella'r sefyllifa hon yn ystod yr ail gylch.

(iii). Dylai fod modd i ymgeiswyr ymuno a'r cynllun gan ddefnyddio un opsiwn
rheoli cynefinoedd yn unig ar yr amod bod ganddynt ddigon o dir i gyflawni'r
sgor o ran trothwy. Byddai hyn yn helpu i leihau'r rhwystrau mynediad sydd bellach
yn wynebu ffermydd ucheldir ymhellach. Drwy ddefnyddio'r "rhestr ranedig" fel y'i
gelwir, lle mae ymgeiswyr yn gorfod dewis o leiaf rai opsiynau o grivp A (ffiniau
caeau) ac o leiaf rai opsiynau o grwp B (cynefinoedd eraill, ansawdd dwr ac ati),

Tudales/ypecyn 47



byddai'r cynllun mewn gwell sefylifa i gyflawni targedau amgylcheddol mwy heriol o
ran rheoli cynefinoedd a dwr. Er mwyn sicrhau cysondeb, gellid cyflwyno eithriadau
lle y cafwyd yr holl bwyntiau o Gnwvp B.

(iv). Dylai pob ymgeisydd gael Pecynnau Rhanbarthol personol ar ffurf
mewnosodiad ar wahan yn y pecyn cais. Dylai mewnosodiad unigol gynnwys
lluniau a ffeithiau allweddol er mwyn annog mwy o ymgysylltu &'r syniad o ddewis
cyfres o opsiynau penodol er mwyn diogelu rhywogaethau o bwys lleol. Wedyn, ni
fyddai angen rhoi manylion am y pecynnau eraill sydd ar gael ledled Cymru.

(v). Mae angen gwneud gwelliannau pellach i'r Canllawiau Technegol. Er
enghraifft, mae'n amlwg na ddylid rhoi opsiwn 42B (Adfer gwrych heb ffensys) ar
waith os oes da byw yn pori ar y caeau cyfagos. Mae CCGC ar ddeall bod y gofyniad
i eithrio stoc yn rhan o bob contract sy'n cynnwys opsiwn 42B bellach, ond eir i'r afael
a'r mater hwn hefyd yn y rhifyn nesaf o'r LIyfrynnau Canllawiau Technegol. Yn yr un
modd, ni ddylid defnyddio coedlan i adfer gwrych mewn ardaloedd lle mae pathew yn
bridio.

(vi). Dylai pob ymgeisydd gael mwy o arweiniad ar y broses o ddewis opsiynau
AWE addas. Er enghraifft, gallai defnyddio llai o fewnbwn ar laswelltiroedd sydd
wedi'u gwella esgor ar fanteision amgylcheddol mawr ar yr amod y gwneir hynny yn y
mannau iawn (wrth ymyl cynefinoedd a chyrsiau dwr sy'n bodoli eisoes) ond gall gael
effaith fach iawn os y'i defnyddir mewn lleoliadau eraill. Yn yr un modd, mae
cyfleoedd i integreiddio'r defnydd o'r AWE a'r cynllun creu coetir, ond mae natury
pecyn cais yn dueddol o annog ymgeiswyr i anelu at fodloni gofynion mynediad y
cynllun yn bennaf yn hytrach na sicrhau'r manteision amgylcheddol mwyaf yn unol &
systemau ffermio sy'n bodoli eisoes. Dylid gwneud mwy o ddefnydd o Cyswllt
Ffermio a'r gwasanaeth Cynghori Ffermydd yn ogystal & FWAG a'r sector gwirfoddol.
Gallai taliad penodol ar gyfer rhoi cyngor i ymgeiswyr unigol fod yn ddefnyddiol
hefyd.

(vii). Dylai'r gwaith o asesu ceisiadau o dan Gynllun Creu Coetir Glastir barhau
i gael ei wneud gan swyddogion hyfforddedig a chwbl annibynnol er mwyn
osgoi unrhyw wrthdaro buddiannau posibl. Byddai'n well gan lawer o
dirfeddianwyr greu coetir newydd ar dir isel ei gynhyrchiant, y mae cryn dipyn
ohono'n gynefin lled-naturiol. Yn anffodus, gall hyn weithiau wrthdaro ag egwyddor
gwarchod cynefinoedd & blaenoriaeth a rhywogaethau adran 42 fel y'u gelwir'.

(viii). Dylai cynllun Glastir olygu bod modd mynd i'r afael & chymhellion coetir
yn ddi-dor ochr yn ochr &'r rhai a geir ar gyfer amaethyddiaeth. Er enghraifft,
gallai rhai glaswelltiroedd asid ucheldirol a gyflwynwyd o dan yr AWE fod ar gael ar
gyfer Cynllun Creu Coetir Glastir, ond mae'n debyg eu bod wedi'u cloi i mewn o dan
ofyniad yr AWE i gynnal cynefinoedd lled-naturiol o dan God y Fferm Gyfan. At
hynny, mae ymgeiswyr i gynlluniau coetir Glastir nad ydynt yn ffermio yn tueddu i
gael mwy o drafferth wrth ymdrin &'r prosesau gweinyddol a luniwyd yn bennaf ar
gyfer cynlluniau amaethyddol.

(ix). Byddai cynnwys enghreifftiau o gontractau AWE ac Elfen wedi'i Thargedu
drwy wefan Llywodraeth Cymru/yn y pecynnau cais yn helpu i egluro nodau
Glastir. Yn achos yr AWE, gellid defnyddio enghreifftiau a oedd yn gymwys i
amrywiaeth o wahanol fathau o ffermydd er mwyn dangos y ffordd orau o roi'r amryw
opsiynau ar waith mewn ffyrdd sy'n diwallu anghenion amaethyddol tra'n sicrhau'r

16 Fel y'u rhestrir yn adran 42 o Ddeddf yr Amgylchedd Naturiol a Chymunedau Gwledig 2006 (Cynefinoedd a Rhywogaethau
Pwysig lawn er mwyn Gwarchod Amrywiaeth Fiolegol)

Tudalen yepegyn 48



manteision amgylcheddol mwyaf. Yn achos yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu, mae'n bwysig
dangos sut mae'r broses ddethol yn gweithio a sut y caiff y contractau eu hunain eu
llunio. Gellid defnyddio amrywiaeth o gontractau ffermydd llawn a rhannol i ddangos
sut y bwriedir i'r amodau Elfen wedi'i Thargedu weithredu ochr yn ochr a'r AWE, y
cynlluniau coetiroedd ac ACRES.

(x). Rhaid sicrhau bod pob ffermwr a chontract AWE cylch cyntaf mewn
sefyllfa i gyfleu negeseuon cadarnhaol. Gall ffermwyr o'r fath hyrwyddo
manteision y cynllun yn ogystal & lleihau'r risg 0 gamsyniadau. Gallai'r rheini sy'n
rhan o'r cynllun eisoes roi arweiniad i'r sawl sy'n dal i ystyried p'un a ddylid cyflwyno
cais ai peidio yn ogystal & chynghori ffermwyr sydd newydd gael contract. Dylid
ystyried sefydlu system fentora ffurfiol ymhellach (lle gellid talu ffermwyr arweiniol
mewn ardal benodol i roi cyngor ac arweiniad i eraill) yn ogystal a sefydlu rhaglen
reolaidd o ymweliadau & ffermydd yn cynnwys aelodau presennol o'r cynllun.

(xi). Dylai pawb sy'n cymryd rhan gael o leiaf un "ymweliad gofal a chynnal” er
mwyn sicrhau eu bod wedi deall yr holl amodau yn llawn a'u bod yn
ymwybodol o nodau'r contract. Mae'n debygol mai dim ond 5% o'r rhai sy'n
cymryd rhan a gaiff arolygiad cydymffurfio ffurfiol gan Arolygiaeth Wiedig Cymru.
Gwastraff arian fyddai peidio & buddsoddi yn yr 6l-ofal angenrheidiol.

(xii). Dylai'r trothwy ar gyfer Lefel Mynediad Is (REL) helpu ffermydd a reolir yn
ddwysach i ymuno a'r cynllun AWE llawn. Gallai'r fath addasiadau gael eu
gwneud yn hawdd yn ystod pum mlynedd gyntaf y contract heb fod angen cael mwy
o staff. Dylai pob fferm REL barhau i fod yn rhan o'r rhai yr ystyrir eu bod yn gymwys
am ymweliad gan reolwr contract yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu. Os caiff ffermydd o'r fath
eu dewis ar gyfer yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu, byddai cael cynnig contract lefel uwch yn
amodol ar y ffermwr yn cytuno i uwchraddio'r contract AWE. Byddai hyn yn helpu i
sicrhau, lle y caiff yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu ei defnyddio i fynd i'r afael & materion sy'n
galw am gydweithredu (megis gwella ansawdd dwr mewn dalgylch penodol), fod pob
fferm berthnasol yn gallu mabwysiadu'r mesurau angenrheidiol.

(xiii). Rhaid sicrhau bod digon o reolwyr contract ar gael i gyflawni'r Elfen
wedi'i Thargedu. Mae'r rhan hon o'r cynllun yn hanfodol i sicrhau targedau
Llywodraeth Cymru a'r GE o ran mynd i'r afael & bioamrywiaeth, rheoli dwr a newid
yn yr hinsawdd.

(xiv). Gallai rhoi'r hawl i gyfranogwyr yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu ymuno a'r
AWE/CLE wrth lofnodi eu contractau ar gyfer yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu sicrhau
cryn dipyn o arbedion gweinyddol. Fel y gwneir o dan gynllun Stiwardiaeth Cefn
Gwlad Lloegr, byddai hyn yn symleiddio'r broses o lunio'r contractau ar gyfer yr Elfen
wedi'i Thargedu, gan sicrhau bod y mesurau a roddwyd ar waith o dan wahanol
rannau o Glastir yn cael eu hintegreiddio'n llawn. O safbwynt CCGC, byddai'r broses
o roi caniatdd SoDdGA yn cael ei gwella'n sylweddol. Yn gyntaf, bydd angen cael
caniatad unwaith yn hytrach na dwywaith. Yn ail, byddai'r caniatdd hwnnw yn llawer
haws i'w roi. Er enghraifft, o0 dan y system bresennol mae'n anodd rhoi caniatad ar
gyfer cynigion AWE/CLE os ydynt yn golygu bod lefelau stoc yn cael eu gostwng i
lefel sy'n rhy isel i gynnal SoDdGA ar ei ffurf bresennol. Byddai pennu cyfradd stoc
fwy addas o dan yr Elfen wedi'i Thargedu yn mynd i'r afael &'r broblem hon yn syth.

Tudalen/ygpecyn 49



(xv). Dylai ffermydd Tir Gofal sy'n bodoli eisoes gael blaenoriaeth o ran ymuno
a'r Elfen wedi'i Thargedu. Bydd tua 3000 o gontractau amaeth-amgylchedd
ffermydd cyflawn yn dod i ben ar 31*" Rhagfyr 2013. Bydd y modd yr ymdrinnir &'r
ffermydd hyn yn hollbwysig i Iwyddiant Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig nesaf Cymru. Er
enghraifft, caiff tua 45,400 hectar o SoDdGA ucheldir tirol eu cwmpasu gan
drefniadau adran 15 CCGC, ond mae 51,500 hectar o fewn Tir Gofal ar hyn o bryd.
Mae'r trefniadau hyn yn cyfrif am gyfran sylweddol o'r tir yr ystyrir ei fod mewn cyflwr
"anffafriol ond adferol" bellach. Os na sicrheir y buddsoddiad a wnaed eisoes, bydd
dirywiad sylweddol mewn perfformiad yn erbyn targedau cyflwr SoDdGA y cytunwyd
arnynt yn flaenorol "’

(xvi). Dylid cadw'r tim presennol o hwyluswyr hyfforddedig er mwyn datblygu'r
elfennau cydweithredol o Glastir. Mae'r cynllun CLE presennol yn liwyddiant
nodedig a rhydd y fersiwn drafft presennol o'r Rheoliad Datblygu Gwledig (RDR)
newydd gyfle i gynyddu cyfraddau talu hyd at 10% o fewn y contractau amaeth-
amgylchedd hynny sy'n cynnwys elfen o gydweithredu. Wrth i nifer y ceisiadau CLE
leihau, gallai'r tim presennol o Swyddogion Datblygu Tir Comin chwarae rhan bwysig
yn y gwaith o helpu i gyflawni'r math o gontractau aml-ffermydd sy'n angenrheidiol i
ymdrin ag amrywiaeth o faterion eraill megis ansawdd dwr a rheoli gwlyptiroedd.

(xvii). Gellid rhoi mwy o ystyriaeth i'r posibilrwydd o ddatblygu elfen ar wahan
o AWE Glastir er mwyn diwallu anghenion yr ucheldiroedd. Efallai y bydd angen
cymryd sawl cam gwahanol o dan RDR i leddfu'r effaith ar sectorau mwy helaeth o'r
newid sydd ar ddod i daliadau ardal o dan Golofn 1. Fel gyda'r Cynllun Lefel
Mynediad Ucheldir yn Lloegr, gellid cymryd y fath gamau i sicrhau bod darparu
cymorth ychwanegol (a fyddai'n gyfnewid am set benodol o ymrwymiadau uwchlaw'r
rhai sydd ar gael ar hyn o bryd o dan yr AWE) yn gyson a'r broses ecosystemau a
nodir yn Cynnal Cymru Fyw.

(xviii). Mae'r gwaith o fonitro canlyniadau amgylcheddol yn chwarae rhan
hanfodol mewn perthynas & mesur p'un a gyflawnir amcanion ai peidio. Mae
gwaith o'r fath yn aml yn ymddangos yn llai tyngedfennol ar ddechrau unrhyw gynllun
newydd, ond mae angen i amodau a gweithdrefnau gael eu hadolygu'n barhaus er
mwyn sicrhau bod arian cyhoeddus yn cael ei wario'n briodol. Drwy gynnwys cost y
gwaith o fonitro canlyniadau yng nghyllideb gyffredinol rhaglenni, dylai helpu i osgoi'r
risg y caiff gwaith o'r fath ei ystyried yn "elfen ychwanegol" yn hytrach nag yn rhan
annatod o'r cynllun.

11. Sylwadau i Gloi

11.1. Mae'r cynnig i wyrddu Colofn 1 yn newid sylweddol yn seilwaith y PAC. Yn
amodol ar negodi pellach ar lefel yr UE, gellid defnyddio'r broses wyrddu i annog
ffermwyr i ymuno & chynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd drwy sicrhau nad oes angen
iddynt fodloni'r gofynion newydd yn yr un modd & ffermwyr organig.

11.2. Tra bod CCGC yn cydnabod mai gorau po leiaf o newidiadau i Glastir a wneir,
mae gofyniad arfaethedig yr UE i fesurau gwyrddu Colofn 1 "fynd y tu hwnt i groes-

gydymffurfiaeth" yn golygu bod rhai addasiadau pellach i'r AWE yn debygol o fod yn
angenrheidiol. Er enghraifft, ymddengys fod diwygio neu ddileu opsiynau 15B a 15D
yn ei gwneud hi'n fwy tebygol y bydd y Comisiwn Ewropeaidd yn cytuno a'r cynnig y

7 Strategaeth Amgylcheddol ar gyfer Cymru (2006). Llywodraeth Cymru.

Tudalen ypegyn 50



dylai pawb sy'n cymryd rhan yng nghynllun Glastir fod wedi eu heithrio o ofynion
gwyrddu Colofn 1.

11.3. Yn flaenorol, croesawodd CCGC y defnydd o gyfnod trosiannol i sicrhau bod y
rhai sy'n cymryd rhan mewn cynlluniau amaeth-amgylchedd ar hyn o bryd yn gallu
parhau i gyflawni eu hymrwymiadau presennol hyd at ddiwedd y CDGC sydd ar waith
nawr. Mae cytundebau Tir Gofal yn cwmpasu tua 18% o arwynebedd amaethyddol
Cymru, ac yr un pryd yn gwneud cyfraniad sylweddol tuag at gyflawni targedau
ynglyn a chyflwr SoDdGAau.

11.4. Bydd niferoedd sylweddol o ffermwyr yn debygol o wneud cais i ymuno a
chynllun Glastir ar 61 i tua 6000 o gontractau amaeth-amgylchedd presennol ddod i
ben ar 312" Rhagfyr 2013. Dylai'r broses o gynnwys ffermydd o'r fath yn yr AWE fod
yn gymharol syml, ond mae'n debygol y bydd angen penodi nifer fawr o swyddogion
prosiect er mwyn osgoi unrhyw oedi a allai fod yn gysylltiedig ag ymuno a'r Elfen
wedi'i Thargedu. Ffordd arall o weithredu fyddai rhoi mwy o bwyslais ar rél y ffermwr
a/neu asiantau preifat i lunio cynigion rheoli manwl.

11.5. Mae tua 85% o dir Cymru wedi'i neilltuo i amaethyddiaeth a choedwigaeth ac
yn y Papur Gwyrdd diweddar ar Gynnal Cymru Fyw cydnabuwyd yn briodol
bwysigrwydd y defnydd tir hwn yn economi Cymru. Mae cynllun Glastir yn ceisio
cynorthwyo'r sector ffermio a'r sector coedwigaeth ar sail gwasanaethau
ecosystemau, ond nid yw hyn wedi'i gynnwys yn dda iawn yn y trafodaethau parhaus
ar adnoddau naturiol fel yr hyrwyddwyd gan y Papur Gwyrdd. Mae proses rheoli tir
gynaliadwy yn chwarae rhan allweddol yn y gwaith o weithredu ar sail ecosystemau a
byddai cynnig rdl glir o ran cyflawni Glastir yn helpu'r Corff Unigol newydd i gyflawni
ei amcanion.

11.6. Wrth ymateb i ymgynghoriad diweddar LIlywodraeth Cymru ar Adnoddau
Naturiol Cymru'®, nododd CCGC “Glastir should have longer-term objectives than its
predecessor schemes if it is to enable sustainable land management. Experience of
previous agri-environment schemes shows that Glastir could win greater support
from farmers and other stakeholders if it was operated at arms-length from
Government. A duty to operate Glastir should be transferred to the new Body at an
appropriate date in the near future”.

Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru

Countryside Council for Wales
Mai 2012

'8 Copi ar gael ar gais.

Tudaleg/ypecyn 51



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 6
Inquiry into Glastir - Evidence from the Soil Association

@ Soil Association

April 2012

Introduction

This response is made on behalf of the Soil Association and produced by its policy
department. The Soil Association is the main organisation for organic food and farming
in the UK, and is a membership charity with over 27,000 members including
approximately 4000 farmer members. The Soil Association also owns an accredited
organic certification company. The area of organically managed land in Wales stood at
124,681 ha at the end of 2010. Most is fully organic with only 5,099 ha in conversion.
This represents just over 8% of the agricultural land area?! (the highest percentage in the
UK). The Soil Association certifies around 30,800 ha of this land. This response focuses
on the impact of the Glastir scheme on organic farmers.

Nb. Given the short amount of time for this consultation we have not been able to fully
consult our members on these questions as we would have wished to do. Therefore the
views given are based on a small humber of our producer members, the Welsh Organic
Group including Organic Centre Wales and other key stakeholders.

Overview

We welcome the fact that there is how a specific organic maintenance fund within
Glastir. We also support the fact that in the interim, existing Organic Farming Scheme
participants in Wales have been invited to extend their existing participation until 2013,
and that application windows for the Organic Conversion Scheme were set. We back the
provision of surgeries which were set up to assist farmers with the Glastir process,
though do not have data on how useful this service was to organic farmers or how widely
it was used.

There is still much uncertainty about the future of support for Welsh organic farmers
post 2014. This uncertainty is having a negative impact on producers in Wales. A recent
(as yet unpublished) report of survey results from Organic Centre Wales (OCW) shows
that in the previous two Welsh producer surveys, the percentage of producers indicating
they intend to cease organic farming in the next five years increased from 18% in 2009,
to 36% in 2010, and this has risen to 42% in 20112, The main concerns were identified
as lower agri-environment payments for organic farming through the Glastir scheme and
uncertainty of CAP reform in general. The Graig Producers group Glastir survey
(conducted in October 2010) also asked for producers to indicate their future organic

1 Soil Association Organic Market report 2011
2 Organic Centre Wales, 2011 producer survey (not yet published)

Tudalen y pecyn 52



farming intentions and 29% stated they intended to withdraw from organic production
with another 33% uncertain.

Views of the scheme

Partly as a result of the various iterations of the scheme, there is a view amongst
farmers that the Glastir scheme is complicated and difficult to access, this view is
compounded by the fact that the guidance documents are long and seemingly difficult to
understand. This view has prevented large number of farmers from entering the scheme.

Specific issues

There is a lot of confusion amongst farmers because the Tir Gofal scheme
included a capital works scheme which was appreciated because the money to
fund the project could be claimed money could be claimed when the project was
completed. The meant a strong element of stability for the farmer. Under the
Glastir proposal, such payments are spread over five years in a points
remuneration scheme. Farmers feel that this has not been explained adequately.
Despite the fact that a higher payment is received if this is calculated over the
five years, farmers have suggested that a preferable alternative is for the
scheme to revert to a capital works programme, rather than having to wait until
at least year three or four of the scheme to be remunerated.

Suggested methods of improving the scheme

It is recommend that that the Welsh Government re-visit the Rees Roberts report
and adopt as many of the proposed recommendations as possible.

In particular there was a suggestion to support a high sugar grass / red clover
option. This was included because it was calculated that using such varieties is 25
% more efficient when producing 1 kg of meat and therefore reduces emissions
signficantly. We strongly urge that this proposal from the Rees Roberts report is
taken forward.

It was also recommended that road and farm boundary hedges are allowed as
part of the scheme. This is an area which farmers take pride in and would
welcome an opportunity to improve their hedges and fences via the Glastir
scheme.

There is a lack of flexibility in the scheme. One example of this is the inability to
add additional land into the Glastir scheme once a farmer has entered into a
contract. This aspect needs to be improved to allow farmers the flexibility of
renting or purchasing extra land. It has been suggested that there could be a five
year break clause, but in theory it appears that once the targeted scheme is
introduced in two years, farmers could be locked into a seven year contract,
which could have significant implications on a farm business.

ACRES offer letters have been received by a relatively large number of farmers
but it appears that there is a heavy burden of bureaucracy and cost on farmers
during the grant application process. For example employing a consultant to
produce a nutrient management plan costs around £500.00 per day. A consultant
must also be employed to give a soil sampling appraisal for the farm and a very
expensive specification of the BSI standard for slurry pits is making some projects
unviable, even with the aid of the grant.

Tudalen y pecyn 53



e There is a view amongst farmers that there hasn’t been enough openness about
the development of the Targeted Element. It is our view that denying Tir Gofal
farmers access to the Targeted Element is a mistake because these farmers
would have acted as beacons of good practice within their communities to
promote elements of the scheme that can help them make up income lost
income. This loss of income is especially acute in LFA areas a result of losing Tir
Mynydd. Tir Gofal farmers have been more proactive in agri-evironment
schemes and could have encouraged their neighbours to enter Glastir.

e There needs to be increased flexibility within the points system to allow for
different size fields from year to year within arable options. One suggestion is to
allow for a 10% increase within each individual option for a farmer to add area if
the field is the wrong size.

e We also suggest that there should be an increase in the unsprayed option
payment to assist organic farmers in off- setting their decreased yield as a result
of weed contamination.

e It would make it easier for farmers to plan for the future if both targeted and all
Wales elements begin on the same date.

Payment Rates

Our major request for organic farmers is that the organic maintenance payment that
has already been promised be provided and for the level of this payment to be at least
in line with that paid in England, Scotland, and indeed the rest of the EU 27.

One of our major concerns regarding the scheme as it stands is that the payment rates
being received by Welsh Farmers (along with those in England, Scotland and Northern
Ireland) are the lowest in the EU3 (see graphs below). New research, commissioned and
published (in press) commissioned by DG Agri (European Commission) confirms this
(Sanders 2012)4.

3 Gerald Schwarz, Hiltrud Nieberg und Jirn Sanders (2010), Organic Farming Support
Payments in the EU, Landbauforschung vTI Agriculture and, Forestry Research, Germany

4 Use and efficiency of public support measures addressing organic farming’
commissioned and published by DG Agri (European Commission). Research by the
Johann Heinrich von Thinen (vTI) Federal Research Institute for Rural Areas, Forestry
and Fisheries, Germany, Forschungsinstitut flr biologischen Landbau (FiBL), Switzerland,
and Organic Research Centre (ORC) United Kingdom

Tudalen y pecyn 54



Figure: 2-4: Comparison of maintenance payment rates for grassland between 2004
and 2009

I 2004
50017 2009

€ per ha
]

7]

" 4 IEP i

BE CZ EE ES FI HU IE LT LV PL SK UK EN NI SC WA' LU'AT DE DK IT &I

— UK ———

AT = Austria, BE = Belgium, BG = Bulgaria, CZ = Czech Republic, DE = Germany, DK = Denmark, EE= Estonia, ES = Spain, FI = Finland, HU = Hungary.
IE = Ireland, IT = Italy, LT = Lithuania, LU = Luxembourg, LV = Latvia, PL = Poland, PT = Portgal, SI = Slovenia, SK = Slovakia, UK = United Kingdom,
UK-EN = England, UK-NI = Northern Ireland, UK-SC = Scotland, UK-WA = Wales

Figure: 2-3: Comparison of maintenance payment rates for arable land between
2004 and 2009

600

| | 2004 N
350 2009
500

450

400

350

300

€ per ha

250 |

“
200 T I
150 —
100
i
50
0

CZ EE ES FI HU IE LT LV PL SE SK UK EN NI SC WA' BE LU' AT DE DK GR IT SI
— UK ——

ASSSASSRRNSSN]|

AT = Austria, BE = Belgium, BG = Bulgaria, CZ = Czech Republic, DE = Germany, DK = Denmark, EE= Estonia, ES = Spain, FI = Finland, GR = Greece, HU =
Hungary, IE = Ireland, IT = Italy, LT = Lithuama, LU = Luxembourg, LV = Latvia, PL = Poland, PT = Portgal, SE = Sweden, SI = Slovema, SK = Slovakia,
UK = United Kmgdom, UK-EN = England, UK-NI = Northern Ireland, UK-SC = Scotland, UK-WA = Wales

Tudalen y pecyn 55



Payments rates through the Organic Farming Conversion Scheme appear to be too low
to attract significant numbers of farmers into organic conversion (as evidenced by the
low uptake of the OFCS scheme since its inception in 2009), and to retain farmers in
organic certification at the end of their current 5 year agreements. In a recent survey
conducted by OCW?, 42% of farmers said they were considering reversion to
conventional farming at the end of their agreement if payments remained at their
present level. Through a separate measure for organic farming (within the current round
of CAP reform), payments can, and should, be enhanced

Lack of support for organic farming

The Welsh Government should welcome the organic market as an important growth area
for the Welsh economy, recognise the vital role played by organic farmers and food
businesses in creating this growth, and support organic businesses with the same
enthusiasm as with other small but rapidly growing areas of the economy.

Strong governmental support for organic farming, and the subsequent benefits it can
bring to the environment and economy has been extremely noticeable in a number of
European countries.

The global production of organic food is set to grow substantially, with the organic
market frequently cited as one of the most significant growth markets in the food
industry. This potential is demonstrated in Austria, Denmark, France, Germany and
Switzerland where sales of organic food continued to grow in 2009, despite the
recession. In the UK, sales fell, although they are now recovering. A range of factors
may explain the recent decline of the UK organic market compared to our European
neighbours, but the passive role of successive UK governments in supporting organic
food and farming is one of the reasons commonly given. In contrast, most European
countries have acted confidently to normalise and champion organic food and farming®.
Despite the support of the Welsh government, particularly in the past, the current low
level of payments to organic farmers is putting Welsh farmers at a disadvantage in
comparison to their European neighbours.

Benefits of organic farming

We are pleased to have the support of Alun Davies AM through the transition of the
Glastir scheme, particularly in his public statement:

"I am committed to ensuring a sustainable organic sector in Wales”. This statement
demonstrates the Welsh Government’s commitment to organic farming and food. It
should give confidence to farmers in Wales that their decision to become organic is in
line with, and will be supported by, future farming policy. It is another boost to the
organic industry — which has much to be positive about.

As outlined in the statement above, organic farming supports all of the environmental
and social outputs the Welsh Government requires from the food and system: but
that the market does not pay for, such as biodiversity, landscape, access, carbon,
water and emissions management). Therefore organic farmers should be adequately
remunerated for providing these benefits.

> Moakes, S; Fowler, S (2011) ‘Welsh Organic Producer Survey 2011’ Institute of
Biological, Environmental and rural Sciences
6 Soil Association (2010) ‘Lazy Man of Europe’, Soil Association

Tudalen y pecyn 56



Organic farming has proven environmental benefits which are widely accepted, for
example by the European Court of Auditors?, and the Welsh Government who have
invested in organic support schemes since 1999.

Organic farming benefits the Welsh economy, for example, (in England and Wales
organic farming generally creates over 70% more jobs than non-organic farming?8).

We believe that the Welsh Government should support agricultural practices
that use natural resources in a rational way:

e water: no depletion or pollution of ground water, no use of river water that leaves
rivers running low, and no pollution of rivers

e soil: conservation and improvement, not degradation

o wildlife on farms: conservation and enhancement, not decline

e landscape: conservation and positive changes to increase diversity, not
destruction of valued landscape features like hedges

e climate: encourage farming practices that store carbon in soils and that rely on
renewable fertility and energy, not fossil-fuel based fertility

e no use of any persistent, bio-accumulative, hormone disrupting pesticides

e highest standards of farm animal welfare.

We believe that organic farming can play a key role in delivering the numerous public
goods which Welsh citizens expect as part of the farm business. As a system, organic
farming can deliver all (or almost all) of the above objectives much more efficiently than
an approach which relies on a myriad of policy interventions which attempt achieve each
one separately.

The compliance costs of organic systems (inspection and certification) are already
effectively met by organic farmers and growers themselves — not taxpayers. Therefore
we urge the government to support new and existing Welsh organic farmers by ensuring
equality across EU nations in terms of support payment levels.

CAP reform

We understand that the as yet unknown outcomes of the current round of CAP reform
negotiations may have impacts on the Glastir scheme post 2014. Despite this, we urge
the Welsh Government to formulate the architecture of the scheme which will support
organic farmers post 2014 as soon as possible to enable Welsh organic farmers to plan
for the future, secure in the knowledge that they will receive adequate payments for the
services they provide which are in line with the rest of the EU member states.

7 European court of Auditors (2011): ‘Is agri-environment support well designed and
managed?’ Special report No. 7

8 England and Wales under organic agriculture: how much food could be produced?,
University of Reading, 2009

Tudalen y pecyn 57



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 7

Eitem 3a

= r’
John Griffiths AC /AM N / ( ﬁ

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy .
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development L PEA

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref

Lord Dafydd Elis-Thomas AM

Chair of the Environment &

Sustainability Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff ZOApril 2012

cear ofld

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE INQUIRY INTO ENERGY POLICY
AND PLANNING IN WALES.

Following my colleague Carl Sargeant’s attendance at the Committee Inquiry into Energy
Policy and Planning in Wales on the 15" March, he agreed to provide written information for
the Committee on the capacity within local authorities to handle large scale planning
applications. As planning falls within my portfolio, | am responding to you on this matter.

The resources required by local authorities for the exercise of their statutory duties is
included in the general block grant given by Welsh Ministers to each unitary authority. Any
new or additional responsibilities are the subject of discussions and negotiations with the
WLGA to establish what level of additional funding is required for their delivery. In the case
of land use planning, some local authority work is covered by application fee income which
is required to accompany most, but not all, planning applications. An application for listed
building consent, for example, does not currently attract a fee. The Welsh Government is
responsible for setting planning application fee levels, which should be budget neutral, that
is, they are set at a level whereby the expenses incurred by authorities are covered, but
without making a profit.

Other planning duties for which local authorities are responsible are included within their
block grant; this funding includes that required for preparing local development plans,
securing environmental improvements, monitoring bio-diversity and tree preservation orders
or undertaking enforcement.

Local Authorities are responsible for the prioritisation and allocation of the block grant
awarded to them in order to ensure that they provide the necessary range of services

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. John. Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i alllﬂz(tfhfl HOO%) Printed on 100% recycled paper
aleny pecyn 58



required by the people they serve. Whilst the Welsh Government puts in place monitoring
arrangements, the details of specific grant allocations and hence the money provided for the
planning services in an area, is a matter for the local authority.

Planning fee income has been affected by the recession, and | understand that large urban
planning authorities have been affected quite noticeably in this context, reflecting the lower
number of higher fee applications submitted.

When it comes to energy applications, | know you are aware that schemes over 50MW are
not devolved and will be processed by the National Infrastructure Directorate (NID) within
the Planning Inspectorate, and that decisions on such schemes in Wales are taken by UK
Ministers. Applicants submit a fee to the NID for their Development Consents Orders.
Projects below the 50MW threshold require planning permission from the local planning
authority who charge the applicant a fee for processing the application. In the case of wind
farms, the planning fee is proportionate to the size (area) of the proposal with the maximum
potential fee currently set at £250,000.

In the case of proposals over 5S0MW local planning authorities are required to consider
proposals as if they were the determining body in order to make meaningful representations
to the UK Government. As a consequence, the workload for local authorities is similar for
projects above and below the 50MW threshold, but in the case of projects over the
threshold, there is no fee income available to them. The Welsh Government has
acknowledged this anomalous situation and provides financial assistance to those
authorities which have to process wind farm applications over 50MW located within the
Strategic Search Areas contained in Technical Advice Note 8. This assistance has been
available for 4 years since 2008/9 and to date nearly £500,000 has been paid to qualifying
authorities.

Where a local planning authority receives a request for pre-application advice that requires
substantially more resources than is normal, it is open to them to recover costs by charging
a fee under section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003. This provision may be used for
energy applications above and below S0MW and | understand that some authorities
are/were using it, such as Anglesey.

The Welsh Government provides additional funding to planning authorities to access
independent specialist advice in respect of renewable energy projects which they are
expected to determine. We recognise that such applications can be technically complex and
often require specialist skills and knowledge in order to assess the likely impacts. The
funding available from the Welsh Government allows local planning authorities to procure
expert specialist technical assistance in order to help with the consideration of renewable
energy projects. This funding has been in place for 2 years with an annual spend of c.
£40,000, on 3 applications in 20010/11 and 4 in 20011/12.

In order provide direct practical assistance to local planning authorities, the Welsh
Government has also produced a wide range of published material over recent years in
order to facilitate the effective planning of renewable energy projects. The material available
for local planning authorities ranges from Practice Guidance Notes on the planning aspects
of different forms of renewable energy technologies, through to a Renewable Energy Toolkit
for Planners which allows for a fuller consideration of renewable energy issues within
Development Plans. Additional funding is available to local planning authorities to assist
them with the production of Renewable Energy Assessments using the toolkit methodology
with joint working and sub-regional collaborative proposals encouraged. This assistance has
been produced specifically to assist local authorities develop expertise and capacity to
consider new energy projects. Copies of the relevant material have already been circulated
to members of the Committee.

Looking to the future, | have established an Independent Advisory Group to advise me on
the content of a Planning White Paper and subsequent Planning Bill. | know that the Group
has already heard evidence from a range of renewable energy stakeholders and local

Tudalen y pecyn 59



authorities, and | am expecting that they will make further recommendations for the effective
planning of renewable energy projects in Wales, including capacity issues.

S e

John Griffiths AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Tudalen y pecyn 60



Tudalen y pecyn 61



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 8

Eitem 3b

John Griffiths AC /AM N / (gj

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy s
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development - / ,JL;

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref

Dafydd Elis-Thomas AM

Chair, Environment and

Sustainability Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay 2 %March 2012
CF99 1NA

ooyl O oyl

Thank you for your letter dated 9 March, which followed consideration by the
Environment and Sustainability Committee of the concerns raised by the Chartered
Institute of Environmental Health Cymru (CIEH), regarding the draft Contaminated
Land Statutory Guidance 2012. | would like to assure you that | have given full
consideration to the points raised by CIEH in relation to the revised Guidance.

The contaminated land regime has been in force for ten years and in that time it had
become clear that there were issues with the way in which the existing Guidance
went about explaining when land does (and does not) need remediation. This had
created significant uncertainty and led to unnecessary and expensive remediation
work being carried out by regulators and developers and took up resources that
could have been focused on dealing with more problematic sites.

The revised Guidance was prepared to address these issues and has been
developed through close working with experts in the contaminated land sector. It will
give regulators more confidence in their decisions, increase transparency and the
proportionality of decisions and will help reduce administrative burdens in line with
the principles of good regulation. | am confident that the revised Guidance will
improve upon the existing contaminated land regime, as it aims to deliver a regime
which is more effective at safeguarding human healith and the environment, by
effectively prioritising higher risk sites.

The most fundamental change in the revised Guidance is the introduction of new four
category approach which reflects what assessors find when they investigate real

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100%

led
recveeapaper Tudalen y pecyn 62



sites i.e. some sites are clearly contaminated land (Category 1), some clearly are not
(Category 4); and some are less straightforward and need some level of detailed
assessment before a decision can be taken on whether or not the land is
contaminated. The Guidance explains how to decide when land falls into each
category. This will create far more legal certainty for regulators and will provide a
better foundation for making scientifically robust decisions, because it recognises the
importance of dealing with uncertainty in the decision making process.

There is no current evidence to suggest that the revisions to the Guidance will result
in a reduced level of health protection to land users. It is also important to remember
that the regime was introduced with the principal objective of capturing those higher
risk sites that posed the most significant risk to human health. A lack of clarity in the
existing Guidance has meant that substantial time and resource has been spent
unnecessarily on sites where any risk is negligible. The new regime will still be highly
precautionary, but will be better at focussing efforts on finding high risk sites and
dealing with them first and helping local authorities appropriately dismiss low risk
sites. This will allow the regime to be more targeted and efficient, while offering
protection against potential health impacts. It is important to understand that these
health impacts can be measured not only in terms of the human health effects
directly from contaminants, but also from the effects of intervention. This is
demonstrated by a recent study commissioned by Defra which found that stress
caused to the person or persons living on or by potentially contaminated land can
have a negative effect on health, and particularly so when decisions are
unnecessarily protracted.

In our formal response to the consultation, we have made it clear that further
technical tools and guidance will follow the revised Statutory Guidance to aid
regulators in carrying out the assessment of the risks posed to human health. This
will help embed the approach already set out in the revised Guidance which aims to
aid local authorities in the decision making process, as far as possible, by setting out
the categories of harm that should be considered to be significant in terms of human
health. The Guidance promotes the use of all the available evidence in the decision
making process and advocates local authorities seeking further specialist advice
where necessary to aid their decision making.

The new Guidance includes consideration of social and economic costs and
recognises that, where decisions cannot be made on science grounds alone, then
social and environmental and economic factors must also be considered. This
approach is to ensure that decisions produce net benefits, while appropriately dealing
with risks. In the consultation phase there was widespread support that the new
Guidance would (for the first time) explicitly recognise that all contaminated land risk
assessments will involve uncertainty, and gives broad advice to regulators on how to
deal with this, helping authorities strike the right balance, particularly on more
complex sites.

| would like to reassure you that the revised Guidance does not condone any
contamination that could pose an unacceptable risk to health, but does provide
advice on how to deal with background or “normal” levels of contamination, avoiding
unnecessary remediation work. This approach allows regulators to focus their efforts
on higher risk land, reducing potential blight on land with normal low levels of
contamination; where in the vast majority of cases there is no scientific evidence to
suggest that any significant harm would be caused. For example, the regime was
never intended to catch normal low levels of substances that could be called
“contaminants” but which are found in all soil (e.g. the result of natural soil formation
processes and human diffuse pollution), or commonly found materials in properties

Tudalen y pecyn 63



such as the normal levels of historic ash in many gardens or ash used in historic
construction techniques. It is important to note however that the revised Guidance
makes it clear that regulators may conduct a risk assessment on land with normal
background levels of contamination if there is a particular reason to consider that it
might pose an unacceptable risk.

| hope this response helps with your consideration of the Contaminated Land
Statutory Guidance 2012.

T s W/
)

John Griffiths AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Amgyichedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Tudalen y pecyn 64



Tudalen y pecyn 65



Environment and Sustainability Committee
E&S(4)-15-12 paper 9

Eitem 3c

7
John Griffiths AC /AM ’{k(g_f??
. A

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy ~
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development PJ)
Llywodraeth Cymru

Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref SF/JG/1388/12

Dafydd Elis-Thomas AM

Chair

Environment and Sustainability

Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay 8 May 2012
Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Dafydd

THE BRITISH WATERWAYS BOARD (TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS) ORDER 2012

Thank you for your letter of 5 April in which you outline the concerns of the
Environment and Sustainability Committee about the draft of the British Waterways
(Transfer of Functions) Order 2012.

In 2009 the British Waterways Board (the Board) published a corporate strategy which
called for the corporation to be transformed into a charitable body. The Board
considered that this would enable British Waterways (BW) to access new sources of
funding to help close the funding gap they faced and would give stakeholders greater
involvement in the running of the waterways network.

In October 2010, the UK Government announced its intention to transfer inland
waterways in England and Wales into a new charitable body. In March 2011, the
Department of the Environment Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) launched a
consultation which stated the UK Government's proposal for those waterways owned
and/or managed by British Waterways to be transferred to a New Waterways Charity
in April 2012. The UK Government response to the consultation was published on 12
September 2011. In the main the consultation responses DEFRA received were
supportive of the direction of travel itself.

British Waterways is a Non Departmental Government Body sponsored by DEFRA. |
was consulted prior to the publication of the consultation paper and when the
Secretary of State for the Environment Food and Rural Affairs announced her
decision. British Waterways is not a devolved body and Welsh Ministers therefore
were not formally a party to the decision to change the status of British Waterways.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov. uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen y pecyn 66



Given that British Waterways itself supports the proposals and the public response to
the consultation was positive | believe that the proposals will ensure a sustainable
future for the waterways in Wales. Charitable status will afford it a great deal more
independence from government and will enable it to access new commercial and
private income streams. The change will also enable local communities to have a
greater say in how their canal or river is run.

| have met British Waterways in Wales on a number of occasions and will be meeting
them again shortly. | fully support their work in Wales. Welsh Ministers interests have
been taken into account in within the draft order before the Assembly. The UK
Government are using powers conferred on them by the Public Bodies Act 2011 to
transfer functions, assets and liabilities from British Waterways to the Canal & River
Trust. The role of the Assembly under the Act is to consent (or not) to “provision which
would be within the legislative competence of the Assembly if it were contained in an
Act of the Assembly”.

Best wishes

John Griffiths AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Tudalen y pecyn 67



	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i Glastir - Tystiolaeth lafar
	Papur 2 (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 3
	Papur 4 (Saesneg yn unig)
	Gofalu am natur Cymru - ar y tir ac yn y môr ● Caring for our natural heritage - on land and in the sea

	Papur 5
	Gofalu am natur Cymru - ar y tir ac yn y môr ●Caring for our natural heritage - on land and in the sea

	Papur 6 (Saesneg yn unig)

	3a Ymchwiliad i bolisi a chynllunio ynni yng Nghymru - Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
	3b Canllaw Statudol Drafft ar Dir Halogedig - Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
	3c Gorchymyn Bwrdd Dyfrffyrdd Prydain (Trosglwyddo Swyddogaethau) 2012 - Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy

